State of New Jersey

CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION

New Brunswick 1947

BIOGRAPHIES

of

DELEGATES

NEW JERSEY CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION

Biographies and Committee Reports

1947

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Ι

Biographies of Delegates

Charles K. Barton

Jane E. Barus

Franklin H. Berry

Thomas J. Brogan

A. J. Cafiero

Percy Camp

Robert Carey

Alfred C. Clapp

Robert C. Clothier

Marion Constantine

Joseph W. Cowgill

Allan R. Cullimore

Joseph A. Delaney

Amos F. Dixon

Lester A. Drenk

John Drewen

William A. Dwyer

William J. Dwyer

Frank H. Eggers

Sigurd A. Emerson

Frank S. Farley

Milton A. Feller

Leland F. Ferry

Arthur R. Gemberling

Ronald D. Glass

Myra C. Hacker

William L. Hadley

Lewis G. Hansen

Albert H. Holland

Charles P. Hutchinson

Nathan L. Jacobs

Christian J. Jorgenson

Marie H. Katzenbach

Henry T. Kays

Wesley L. Lance

Leon Leonard

Arthur W. Lewis

Milton C. Lightner

Francis V. D. Lloyd

Thorn Lord

Edward A. McGrath

Wayne McMurray

Gene W. Miller

Spencer Miller, Jr.

John Milton

John L. Montgomery

J. Francis Moroney

John L. Morrissey

Francis D. Murphy

Frank J. Murray

George T. Naame

Edward J. O'Mara

William J. Orchard

Lawrence N. Park

Winston Paul

Henry W. Peterson

Pauline H. Peterson

Haydn Proctor

John H. Pursel

H. Rivington Pyne

John J. Rafferty

Oliver Randolph

William T. Read

Olive C. Sanford

Wilbour Eddy Saunders

John F. Schenck

Frank G. Schlosser

Ralph J. Smalley

George F. Smith

J. Spencer Smith

Frank H. Sommer

Francis A. Stanger, Jr.

Ruth C. Streeter

Clyde W. Struble

Wesley A. Taylor

David Van Alstyne, Jr.

George H. Walton

Elmer H. Wene

Walter G. Winne

David Young, 3rd

- II. Reports of Committee on Arrangement and Form
 - 1. Rights, Privileges, Amendments and miscellaneous provisions
 - 2. Legislative Article
 - 3. Executive, militia and Civil Officers
 - 4. Judiciary Article
 - 5. Taxation and Finance
- III. Committee on Submission and Address to the People
- IV Constitution
- V Bibliography on Constitutional Revision

The following biographies are based on those submitted by the delegates to the Constitutional Convention of New Jersey held at Rutgers University, the State University of New Jersey, from June 12 to September 12, 1947.

The biographies appear in alphabetical order.

Jane E. Barus

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

Cape Cod.

75 Llewellyn Road, Montclair League of Women Voters

OCCUPATION:

Born in Kansas City, Missouri, in 1892. Family moved to New Jersey in 1895. Graduated from Miss Beard's School of Orange, and from Smith College in 1913. Member of Phi Beta Kappa Society. Taught Mathematics at Miss Beard's School. Married in 1915 to Maxwell Barus, now a partner in the law firm of Fish, Richardson and Neave of New York City. Four children, three of whom served in the Navy during the war, and one grandchild. Took a Master of Arts degree at New York University in Took a Master of Arts degree at New York University in 1942. Now living in Montclair, with summer home on

Has done volunteer work in various civic and social welfare fields. Trustee of the Brookside School of Montclair, and of the Booker T. Washington Community Hospital of Newark. Lecturer on Parent Education. Chairman of Mayor's Committee on Housing in 1937, and Chairman of Montclair Housing Authority 1938-1943. Served on local USO Committee during war. Main interest and occupation the League of Women Voters, holding several local and state offices. President of the Montclair League and of the New Jersey League 1943-1947. Member of the Essex County Council against Discrimination, under the Fair Employment Practices Act of New Jersey.

Franklin H. Berry

COUNTY:

Ocean

ADDRESS: OCCUPATION:

Toms River Lawyer

Born May 15, 1904, at Manahawkin, N. J., the son of J. Willits and Jessie Haywood Berry.

Graduate of University of Pennsylvania, A.B. and LL.B. Admitted to New Jersey Bar, October term, 1928. Engaged in general practice of law in Toms River under firm name of Berry and Whitson.

Former president, Beach Haven National Bank and Trust Co.; past president, Ocean County Lawyers' Club and Ocean County Bankers Association.

Member, Sons of the American Revolution; The Holland Society of New York; Ocean County, New Jersey State and American Bar Associations; the Judge Advocates' Association. Colonel, JAG Res., U. S. Army.

Served in World War II in grades of Captain to Colonel, inclusive. Overseas service in Iceland, England, France, Belgium and Germany. Awarded Legion of Merit for services rendered in Normandy.

One son: Franklin H. Berry, Jr.

Thomas J. Brogan

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

99 Gifford Avenue, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Thomas J. Brogan was admitted to the bar of this State in November, 1912. He practiced law until 1932, during the interval serving as corporation counsel of Jersey City for eleven years. He was nominated an Associate Justice of the Supreme Court by Governor Moore on April 25, 1932 and confirmed by the Senate the following day. On February 20, 1933, he was nominated as Chief Justice by Governor Moore and was confirmed by the Senate March 9th, 1933. Reappointed at the expiration of his term in 1940, he served as Chief Justice until March 15th, 1946, when he resigned that office to resume the practice of law.

Scholastic attainment: Graduated College of St. Francis Kavier, New York City, 1909, A. B.; Fordham University School of Law, 1912, LL. B.; received Master's Degree and Doctor of Laws Degree, Manhattan College, Seton Hall College and St.Peter's College.

A. J. Cafiero

COUNTY:

ADDRESS:

Cape May 2010 Central Avenue, North Wildwood

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born Philadelphia, Pa., February 11, 1900 Attended public and parochial schools and LaSalle Preparatory School in Philadelphia, Pa., and New Jersey Law School in Newark, N. J.

Is atterney and counsellor at law; also Special Master in Chancery and Supreme Court Commissioner.

Has been City Treasurer of the City of North Wildwood, N. J.; Clerk of the Board of Choson Freeholders of Cape May County; Prosecutor of Pleas for said county, and at present is President Judge of the Court of Common Pleas.

Is former President of the Cape May County Bar Association; Wildwood Rotary Club; Wildwood Golf and Country Club; and The Association of Ítalian-American Citizens! Clubs of Cape May County.

Married Hazel Koenig in 1926 and lives with his family at 2010 Central Ave., North Wildwood, N. J. His son James, 19, is a student at Princeton; and his daughter Andrea, 9, attends St. Ann's School in Wildwood. NAME: COUNTY: Robert Carey

ADDRESS:

Hudson 2595 Boulevard, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born in Jersey City, 1872, and have resided there all my life. Graduate of Jersey City High School and New York Law School; law degree LL.B. cum laude. While studying law for five years, was on the reportorial staff of the New York World and New York Herald, and a number of New Jersey papers.

Admitted to the New Jersey Bar 1893 as attorney, and in 1896 as counsellor. Later admitted to practice in New York State Bar and all the federal courts, including the United States Supreme Court. Have practiced my profession continuously ever since, supplemented with official relationships.

Married Cora G. Curney in 1900. Have two children: Robert, a lawyer in the City of Newark; and Nan Neff, of Orange, N. J.

Public Offices:

First office, counsel for Jersey City Board of Health. Served six years as corporation attorney of Jersey City under Mayor Mark Fagan (a Republican Mayor). In January, 1908, was appointed by Governor Fort a member of the State Board of Taxation, and later appointed by him as Judge of the Hudson County Court of Common Pleas. Served in that capacity from 1913. Appointed by Governor Fielder as trustee for the State Home for Boys. Later was appointed New Jersey counsel for the New York and New Jersey Bridge and Tunnel Commission, and served in that capacity for seven years. Only other offices ever held were incidental.

For five years during the last war was Chairman of the Appeal Board of Selective Service for Hudson County.

Civic

For 35 years have been counsel for the Jersey City Chamber of Commerce (without pay). Have been one of the trustees of Christ Hospital of Jersey City, for 35 years. Have been for a long time and am now a member of the Advisory Board of the Young Women's Christian Association, and am still counsel therefor.

Have been director of several of the banks in our county, and have represented them legally for a number of years.

Have been constantly active in the Republican Party since 1896. Have attended five national Republican Conventions as delegate. Have been a member of the Republican State Committee and Hudson County Republican Committee.

Alfred C. Clapp

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

17 Wayside Place, Montclair

OCCUPATION: Attorney

Born 1903. University of Vermont Ph. B. 1923; Harvard Law School LL.B. 1927. Resident of Montclair. Engaged in the general practice of the law at Newark; counsellor-at-law; Special Master in Chancery.

Of counsel to the 1944 Legislature in the preparation of the 1944 Constitution. Editor, New Jersey Law Journal. Member and Secretary of the Chancellor's Advisory Committee, appointed 1946, on Chancery and Probate Practice. Associate Professor, Rutgers Law School; New York University Law School; former Instructor of Chancery Practice at Mercer Beasley Law School. Deputy Surrogate of Essex County; Advisory Master, Essex County Orphans! Court. Author, "Wills and Administration in New Jersey" (2 vols.). Trustee, Essex County Bar Association. Trustee and former Director of New Jersey Institute for Practicing Lawyers. Member, American Law Institute, American Bar Association, American Judicature Society, New Jersey State Bar Association.

President, Phi Beta Kappa Association of Essex County. President, Brookside School of Montclair. Former President, Family Welfare Society of Montclair. Treasurer, Montclair Republican Club.

ADDRESS:

Robert C. Clothier

COUNTY:

Middlesex River Road, New Brunswick

OCCUPATION:

Educator

Robert Clarkson Clothier, fourteenth president of Rutgers University, was born in Philadelphia, Pa., on January 8, 1885, the son of Clarkson Clothier and Agnes Evans Clothier. He attended Haverford School at Haverford, Pa., from 1894 to 1904, and was graduated from Princeton University in 1908 with the degree of Bachelor of Letters. At Princeton, he majored in political economy and history, was editor-in-chief of the Daily Princetonian, a member of the Senior Council, and otherwise active in campus affairs.

After a year as a reporter on the staff of the Wall Street Journal, Dr. Clothier left newspaper work in 1910 to enter the service of the Curtis Publishing Company of Philadelphia. He was employment manager when he left that firm in 1917 to go to Washington as a member of the Committee on Classification of Personnel in the Army organized by the War Department to discover the industrial and technical skills of the recruits flowing into the Army. This work extended into all Army Cantonments. He was later sent overseas to study the personnel procedures of the British and French armies and to establish liaison between the personnel work in the United States and in the AEF. He held the commission of lieutenant-colonel on the General Staff.

After the Armistice, Dr. Clothier joined in organizing the Scott Company, consultants in industrial personnel, and was vice-president of the firm from 1918 to 1923. In the latter year he returned to the Haverford School as assistant headmaster. He was acting headmaster of the school during the sabbatical leave of Edwin M. Wilson during 1928-1929. In 1929, Dr. Clothier was called to the University of Pittsburg as dean of men. He remained in that position during the next three years.

Since Dr. Clothier's inauguration as president of Rutgers University on March 2, 1932, the institution has had a remarkable growth. Rutgers research, already world-renowned in the field of agriculture, has been greatly expanded. The University has acquired much property and participated in an extensive building program. Expansion of the university's academic program has kept pace.

In the post-war period, Rutgers has provided for nearly a 100 per cent expansion in the facilities of its men's colleges in New Brunswick, and made other provisions throughout the State to meet the emergency caused by an unprecedented demand for its educational services. At the same time, off-campus centers were established at strategic locations throughout the State, and an urban college center was acquired in the Newark Colleges.

During the war Rutgers had a prominent part in the training of students and civilians for the war effort, and was named as one of the pilot colleges in the War Department's Army Specialized Training Program. Dr. Clothier was one of the advisors to the War Department. Nearly 3,000 Army men were trained as engineers or language

and area specialists at Rutgers under this program.

Rutger's growth was climaxed by its designation in 1945 as The State University of New Jersey.

On June 24, 1916, Dr. Clothier married Miss Nathalie Wilson, daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Edward H. Vilson of Philadelphia. They had three children: Agnes Evans Clothier, Arthur Wilson Clothier and Robert Clarkson Clothier, Jr. Arthur Clothier was killed in an airplane accident at Ellington Field, Texas, on February 20, 1942, while in training as an Aviation Cadet in the Army Air Corps. He was 22 years old.

Dr. Clothier has been the recipient of the following honorary degrees: 1932, Doctor of Laws, Princeton University, University of Pittsburgh, and Tusculum College; 1933, Doctor of Laws, Dickinson College; 1934, Doctor of Letters, Temple University; 1935, Doctor of Laws, New York University; and 1938, Doctor of Laws, Lafayette College.

Dr. Clothier is a member of the board of trustees of the Haverford School and the Baldwin School. He is a director of the Mutual Benefit Life Insurance Company, and the Public Service Corporation of New Jersey. He is a member of the following clubs: the Nassau Club, Princeton; the Princeton Clubs of Philadelphia and New York; the Merion Cricket Club at Haverford; the Century Association; and the University Clubs of New York and Philadelphia.

Dr. Clothier's hobbies are tennis, golf, yacht racing and cruising. Ordinarily he spends his vacation at his camp on an island off the Nova Scotia coast.

He is an independent Republican in politics and is a member of the Second Reformed Church, New Brunswick.

CONSTANTINE Marion, Mrs.

NAME: COUNTY: Mrs. Marion Constantine

OUNTY: Passaic

ADDRESS:

18 Idaho St., Passaic

OCCUPATION:

Housewife

Born in Seymour, Connecticut, daughter of Robert A. and Harriett Beecher Hamilton. Educated in the public schools of Connecticut and Brooklyn, New York. Graduate of the Fine Arts course, Pratt Institute, student at Teachers College and the Art Students League, New York City. Married to Joseph H. Constantine, Director of Industrial Education, Passaic Public schools. Two daughters, Mrs. James E. Magee and Mrs. Spencer Dean Johnson, and two granddaughters, Phyllis Jean and Nancy Barbara Magee.

President of the Passaic League of Women Voters for four years. Present member of Camp Hope Commission and the Passaic Board of Education.

Joseph W. Cowgill

COUNTY:

Camden

ADDRESS:

2216 - 43rd Street, Pennsauken Twp.

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born April 24, 1908; son of William and Harriet Cowgill. Graduated Camden High School, 1925; University of Pennsylvania, 1929, with B. S. degree; University of Pennsylvania, 1933, with LL.B. degree.

Admitted to the Bar 1934. Married Margaret E. Bittner in 1940; residence 2216-43rd Street, Pennsauken Township, New Jersey. Maintains law offices at 721 Market Street, Camden, New Jersey.

District Supervisor, 1940 Census, First Congressional District of New Jersey; member of the New Jersey House of Assembly, 1941; appointed Surrogate of Camden County in December, 1941. Entered United States Navy, 1943; discharged December, 1945, as Lieutenant. Appointed Assistant Prosecutor of Pleas January 1, 1946; resigned December 31, 1946. A Democrat in politics.

NAME: Allan R. Cullimore

COUNTY: Essex

ADDRESS: 158 Garfield Place, South Orange

OCCUPATION: Educator

Educator; born in Jacksonville, Ill. March 2, 1884; son of Thomas and Mary Pearce (Joy) Cullimore. Educated at Belmont School; Massachusetts Institute of Techology, B.S. in C.E.; University of Newark, Sc.D.; Beta Theta Pi; Phi Kappa Phi. Married at Brooklyn, N. Y., March 25, 1912 to Edith Van Alst.

Draftsman, American Bridge Co., 1906-08; Asst. Supt. of Construction, City of St. Louis, 1909-1912; Dean of the College of Industrial Science, Univ. of Toledo, 1912-16; Dean of Engineering, Delaware College, 1916-19; Dean, Newark College of Engineering, 1919-27; President, Newark College of Engineering, 1927-date.

Major, Sanitary Corps, U.S. Army, 1918-19;
Regional Advisor, Region No. 5, EDT, ESMDT and ESMWT,
U.S. Office of Education, 1940-45; 1st Vice Pros.,
S.P.E.E., 1943-44; Member, Advisory Committee, HumanisticSocial Studies Division, S.P.E.E., 1944-date; Chairman,
Committee on Student Selection and Guidance, E.C.P.D.,
1943-45; Chairman, Subcommittee on Student Development,
Committee on Engineering Schools, E.C.P.D., 1946-date;
Prosident, Robert Treat Council, Boy Scouts of America,
1941-44; Chairman, Finance Committee, Robert Treat Council,
Boy Scouts of America, 1944-46; Chairman, Camp Mohican
Development Committee, Robert Treat Council, Boy Scouts
of America, 1945-date; Member, Regional Executive Committee, Boy Scouts of America, 1943-45; Member, Retirement
Insurance Committee, Boy Scouts of America, 1943-date;
Member, Rehabilitation Committee, ESMWT, 1943-45; Member,
Nowark Airport Commission, 1944-date; Member, Citizons'
Advisory Committee to the Central Planning Board of City
of Newark, 1945-date; Member, Soldiers and Sailors Municipal Aid Bureau Advisory Council of City of Newark, 1945date; Member, Thomas A. Edison Centennial Committee, for
1947; Member, Advisory Committee to Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Dopt. of Labor, for study of utilization of
impaired workers in industry, 1946-date; Chairman, Essex
County Council, Division Against Discrimination, N. J.
State Department of Education, 1946-date; Member, Visiting
Committee for Department of Civil and Sanitary Engineering;
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, 1946-date; Advisory
Member, Engineers Civic Responsibility Committee, A.S.M.E.,
1947-date; member; American Society of Mechanical Engineers,
Clubs: Down Town (Newark), Technology, Maplewood Country,
Engineers' Club of New York.

Joseph A. Dolaney

COUNTY:

Passaic

ADDRESS:

388 12th St., Paterson Law (Retired Judge)

OCCUPATION:

Born in Paterson, Judge Delaney was educated in the Paterson schools, St. Peter's College, and received his law degree from New York Law School. He was admitted to the bar in 1897 and became a counsellor-at-law in 1901. He became a member of the Paterson Board of Education, later serving as its president for two terms. He was elected to the Legislature in 1913. He was judge of the Paterson District Court and served a term as U. S. Commissioner. Appointed judge of the Passaic County Common Pleas Court in 1922, Judge Delaney served on that bench for 25 years, retiring Judge Delaney served on that bench for 25 years, retiring on April 1, 1947. NAME: COUNTY: Amos F. Dixon

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:

Sussex Stillwater

OCCUPATION:

Assemblyman-Farmer

Mr. Dixon was born on a farm near Victoria, Illinois, on December 5, 1877. He later moved to Keokuk, Iowa, where he attended elementary school and graduated from high school. He studied engineering in Akron, Ohio; Chicago and New York, attending classes at both Armour Institute and Columbia University. He has been an engineer and an executive in the Bell System for 38 years and has been granted over 60 patents for inventions in the communication field. He retired from the Bell System in 1940 and since that time has devoted most of his time to the operation of his dairy farm at Stillwater, which he purchased in 1935.

He was Chairman of the New York Section of the American Institute of Electrical Engineers for one term and is a licensed professional engineer in both New York and New Jersey.

He has been Chairman of the Township Committee of Stillwater for 1942-1944 and is now serving another three-year term.

He is a member of the New Jersey Society of Professional Engineers; member of Newton Rotary Club; Harmony Masonic Lodge; Enterprise Grange; a Director of the Sussex County Board of Agriculture; a past Director of the Sussex County Milk Producers Association; Vice-President of the New Jersey Dairymen's Council; President of New Jersey Association of Township Committeemen.

He was elected to the Assembly for the first time at the November, 1944, election, and was reelected in 1945 and 1946.

NAME: COUNTY: ADDRESS: OCCUPATION: Lester A. Drenk Burlington Route 25, Riverside Attorney

Born Riverside, Burlington County, May 9, 1903. Attended elementary public schools in Riverside; Friends Central, Philadelphia, Pa.; Swarthmore College, Swarthmore, Pa.; Temple University Law School, Philadelphia, Pa. Admitted to practice law in New Jersey 1928; counsellor 1938. President of Board of Education, Riverside, member 10 years. Served two three-year terms as solicitor of Board of Freeholders, Burlington County. Carried on general practice of law from admission to the present in the City of Camden. Presently member of the firm of Drenk & Walton, 113 N. 4th Street, Camden, New Jersey. Member of Burlington County and Camden County Bar Associations; New Jersey State Bar Association; American Bar Association; American Judicature Society.

John Drewen

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

40 Gifford Ave., Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Judge

Born in Jersey City 58 years ago. Graduate of Senftner Preparatory School in New York City and New York Law School.

Admitted to the New Jersey Bar as attorney in 1913 and as counsellor in 1916. Entered general practice of the law in Jersey City in 1920, in partnership with the late Randolph Perkins who was Congressman from the Seventh District of New Jersey from 1920 until his death in 1936.

As Acting Assistant Prosecutor of Hudson County represented the State in the argument of the appeals taken in the Black Tom explosion cases.

From 1929 to 1934 served as Prosecutor of the Pleas of Hudson County. In 1946 appointed by Governor Edge to Hudson County Common Pleas Bench.

William A. Dwyer

COUNTY:

Passaic

ADDRESS:

628 Broadway, Paterson

OCCUPATION:

Physician

Born in Gregory, Montana. Educated in the local schools of Paterson, St. Peter's College, Jersey City and New York University. Degree of M.D. from New York University 1911. Former member of the Board of Finance, City of Paterson. Member of the New Jersey State Surgical Society, member of the New Jersey State Medical Society, Fellow of American Medical Association, New York Academy of Medicine, American College of Surgeons and Diplomat of the American Board of Obstetrics and Gynecology.

Married Amelia M. Dunn. Three children, Wm. A. Jr., student at New York University, Arthur C. and James M., students at Newark Academy.

William J. Dwyer

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

8 Linden Court, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Banker

Banker; born in Jersey City, New Jersey, March 20, 1888; son of William J. and Katherine Loretta (Cogan) D.; educated at St. Paul's Academy, Jersey City, New Jersey; married Clara Virginia Daniels, August 20, 1926; children - Nancy Elliott, William Daniels.

Salesman, traveled 12 years; field director, American Red Cross, 1920 to 1923; founder, Bailey, Dwyer & Company, Jersey City, New Jersey, 1925; reorganized Bergen Trust Company, Jersey City, New Jersey, 1940, president since October 1, 1940; director Westerleigh Hills Realty Corporation; vice president Bailey Dwyer & Company, Jersey City; State Chairman for New Jersey, American Bankers Association war bond committee, 1944 to 1945; vice president New Jersey Division American Cancer Society; state treasurer, Sister Kenny Foundation; trustee men's advisory board Jersey City Y.W.C.A. Served as private, U. S. Army; captain, September 10, 1917, A.E.F., October 1917 to July 1919, World War I. Member American Bankers Association (trustee), American Institute Banking, American Legion, Community Chest. Republican. Electoral College nominee of New Jersey, 1939.

Clubs: Lake Mohawk Country, Lake Mohawk Horse Show Association (chairman); Theodore Roosevelt Association (Jersey City); Kiwanis, Jersey City Philharmonic (president 1945-46); Bond (New Jersey); Lotus of New York.

Home: 8 Linden Court, Jersey City, N.J.; (summer) Lake Mohawk, New Jersey. Office: 26 Journal Square; and 921 Bergen Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey.

Frank H. Eggers

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

334 Arlington Avenue, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer - Government Official

Born in Jersey City on February 22, 1901, he attended the public schools there, as well as Carleton Academy and Fordham University Law School.

He has been in public service for the past 23 years. He was Secretary to Corporation Counsel Thomas J. Brogan of Jersey City from 1924 to 1929; Criminal Court Judge from 1929 to 1934; was appointed District Court Judge by Governor A. Harry Moore in February, 1934; Secretary to Mayor Frank Hague, 1938 to 1942, and has been Commissioner of Jersey City since August 4, 1942. He became Mayor in June, 1947.

Mayor Eggers has been a practicing lawyer for 17 years since his admission to the Bar in 1930. He is a counsellor-at-law and was appointed as a Supreme Court Commissioner by the New Jersey Supreme Court in 1943.

During World War II Mayor Eggers served in the United States Coast Guard and is National Chairman of the Youth Promotion and Recreation Committee of the Amvets (American Veterans of World War II.) He has been President of the Hudson Council of the Boy Scouts of America for the past 7 years.

He resides at 334 Arlington Avenue, Jersey City, and is married to the former Mary L. McDonald. They have three children, Frank H. Eggers, Jr., age 16, Mary Louise, age 14, and Alice, age 6.

Mayor Eggers is a member of the Hudson County, New Jersey State and American Bar Associations.

EMERSON Sigurd A.

NAME:

Sigurd A. Emerson

COUNTY:

Union

ADDRESS:

231 Exeter Way, Hillside

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Admitted to practice law in New Jersey, February, 1920; admitted as a counsellor-at-law 1923. Former president of the Union County Bar Association. Now practicing law at 744 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey, under the firm name of Emerson, Emery & Danzig.

Married Clarinda Nelson Field and have three sons: Field, John and David.

NAME: Frank S. Farley

COUNTY: Atlantic

ADDRESS: 6104 Ventner Ave., Ventner

OCCUPATION: Attornoy

Born in Atlantic City, N. J., December 5, 1901. He attended local schools, University of Pennsylvania, and Georgetown University Law School, from which he graduated in 1925, receiving an LL.B. degree. He is a counsellor-at-law of New Jersey, with offices at 503 Schwehm Building, Atlantic City; also a Supreme Court Commissioner and a Special Master in Chancery of New Jersey.

"Hap," as he is affectionately known to his many friends, is a member of D. K. E. Fraternity and member of New Jersey Football Association, and numerous civic and fraternal organizations. He is Chairman of the Atlantic County Republican Committee, and a member of the Crippled Children Commission of New Jersey.

He is President of the Atlantic County Bar Association.

He was elected to the Assembly in 1937, and re-elected in 1938 and 1939. He was elected to the Senate for the lirst time in Movember, 1940, and re-elected in 1945 and 1946. He was Majority Leader of the 1944 session.

Senator Farley was President of the 1945 Senate, and during the year served as Acting Governor when Governor Edge was absent from the State.

Milton A. Feller

COUNTY:

Union

ADDRESS:

517 Burnham Rd., Elizabeth

OCCUPATION:

Judge

Born September 21, 1902 in New Brunswick, New Jersey but has resided in Elizabeth, New Jersey since 1904. Graduated from St. Mary's Parochial School in 1917 and from Battin High School, Elizabeth, New Jersey, in 1921; graduated from Seton Hall College, South Orange, New Jersey in 1925 with the Degree of Bachelor of Arts, and received a degree of Master of Arts from Seton Hall College in 1927; graduated from New Jersey Law School, Newark, New Jersey in 1929 with the degree of Bachelor of Law.

Former instructor of English, History, Civics and Government in Scton Hall Preparatory School, and of Economics at St. John's University, School of Commerce, Brooklyn, New York; former baseball coach at Scton Hall College and High School from 1928 to 1932, inclusive.

Admitted to the Bar in February 1931, and has been practicing law in Elizabeth ever since that time. He was a member of the City Council of Elizabeth for four years, from 1934 to 1938, inclusive; a member of the New Jersey State Legislature, House of Assembly during the years 1942, 1943 and 1944, and Judge of the First Judicial District Court of Union County from June 1, 1944. At the present time he is an officer of the Elizabeth Lodge of Elks, a member of the Board of Governors of the Scton Hall Alumni Association, and counsel for the New Jersey Education Association. Also Professor of Law at John Marshall Law School since September, 1946.

Leland F. Ferry

COUNTY:

Borgen

ADDRESS:

1500 River Road, West Englewood

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born at Bethel, Connecticut, on February 12, 1900. A resident of Teaneck since 1911; the son of Fairchild N. Ferry, deceased, and Clara B. Ferry. Graduated from the Teaneck Public Schools and Englewood High School. Professional training in the Law School of New York University where he received the Degree of Bachelor of Laws in 1924. He later studied advanced law in courses at Columbia University. Admitted to the bar in 1925; counsellor-at-law in 1930. Law offices at 362 Cedar Lane, Teaneck.

Former Borough Attorney for Dumont, Westwood, Marrington Park; First Assistant Prosecutor of Bergen County 1934-1936; Judge of the Criminal Court of the First Judicial District of Bergen County 1936-1944. Director and Counsel of the Tenakill Building and Loan Association; United States Selective Service Government Appeal Agent; former President of Teaneck Rotary Club; member of the Teaneck Planning Board; 32nd Degree Mason; member of the Bergen County Bar Association and New Jersey State Bar Association; warden of Christ Episcopal Church of West Englewood.

Married to Lois A. Curtis, daughter of the late Charles and Sarah (Haring) Curtis. Three children - Curtis F., Leland F., and Lorinda A.

Veteran of World War I, having served in the 211th Field Signal Battalion of the U. S. Signal Corps.

Arthur R. Gemberling

COUNTY:

Salem

ADDRESS:

Woodstown

OCCUPATION:

Retired Teacher

Real estate and mortgage broker of Woodstown, New Jersey. Born in Selinsgrove, Pennsylvania. After graduating from Lebanon Business College he spent 35 years as an instructor of commercial subjects in Philadelphia private colleges. He was a member of the Camden City Council for eight years; and one of the organizers and Vice-President of the East End Trust Co., Camden, New Jersey. For many years he was active in Parent-Teachers Association work and organized the Salem County Council of the P. T. A.

NAIE:

C.

Ronald D. Glass

COUNTY:

Passaic

ADDRESS:

122 Ryerson Ave., Paterson

OCCUPATION:

School Principal

I. Vital Statistics.

Born in Paterson, N. J. September 22, 1911. Third-generation Patersonian. Larried Margaret Munt September 2, 1939.

c •

d. Two daughters, Cheryl and Ronna.

II. Education.

Eastside High School, Paterson, N. J.

b. Paterson State Teachers College.

- Bachelor of Science degree, Columbia University. Laster of Education degree, Rutgers University. Doctorate almost completed, Rutgers University. c.
- d.
- е.

III. Employment

- Teacher of Social Studies and Mathematics, Fair a.
- Lawn, N. J., February 1933 March, 1939.
 Principal, Lincoln School, Fair Lawn, N. J.,
 March, 1939 February 1947.
 Principal, School Mo. 21, Paterson, N. J.
 February 1, 1947 position now held.

IV. Highlights.

- Published numerous national magazine articles. a.
- Filled numerous speaking engagements throughout State.

V. War Record.

- a.
- Sorved 32 years. Captain, Army Air Forces. b.
- Four major campaigns.
 - 1. Air combat over Balkans.
 - Air offensive Germany. Appenines campaign. 2.
 - 3.
 - Fo Valley campaign.
- 98th Heavy Bomb Group, 15th Air Force in Italy. d.

Organizations.

- Phi Delta Kappa National Honor Fraternity.
- b.
- American Legion. New Jersey Education Association. Air Force Association. c.
- d.
- Passaic County Schoolmasters Association.

Myra C. Hacker

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS:

1545 Warwick Ave., Teaneck

OCCUPATION:

Housewife

Myra C. Hacker, Barnard College, B.A. Degree; Columbia University, M.A. Degree in Government and Public Law. Studies in Comparative Government in Europe, Latin America and Continental United States; graduate study in Education, Political Science and Social Problems at Columbia University, Fordham University, and New York University.

Former State Chairman of Legislation and Citizenship of the New Jersey State Federation of Women's Clubs.

At present member of the Teaneck Board of Adjustment, since 1941. Chairman of Education of the Bergen County Woman's Republican Club; member of the Board of Governors of Women's State Republican Club.

Vice-President of the New Jersey Chapter, Society for Constitutional Security; National Secretary for Organization for National Society for Constitutional Security.

William L. Hadley

COUNTY:

Union

ADDRESS:

1111 Putnam Ave., Plainfield

OCCUPATION:

Publisher

Born in Staffordshire, England, July 7, 1883. Came to the United States when seven months old with my mother and three sisters and three brothers.

Located at Bernice, Sullivan County, Pennsylvania, where my father, the late Benjamin Hadley, was engaged in the pursuit of coal mining, that having been his occupation in England. He was in America when I was born. The family later moved to Jefferson County, Pennsylvania.

My mother was the late Matilda (Robinson) Hadley. The farm which became Hadley Field Airport was her home for many years. Later she resided in Plainfield prior to her death. Hadley Field was named for her. There were 12 living children in the Hadley family, seven boys and five girls. There are six now living, three boys and three girls.

My first business experience was selling newspapers. For 6½ years I was a coal miner in the Western Pennsylvania field. In the winter of 1898 I migrated to Pittsburgh, Pa., where I engaged in several pursuits over a period of 11 years, including newspaper work and the dramatic stage. Two very important events transpired during my residence in Pittsburgh: (1) it was there I cast my first ballot at a local election; (2) I married Amy Elizabeth Swinbank, September 30, 1906.

I came east to New Jersey in 1908, locating first at the Hadley farm, now Hadley Field, and later moving into Plainfield where we have since resided. I have lived at 1111 Putnam Avenue, Plainfield since 1919.

In the fall of 1908 I returned to newspaper work as part of the staff of The Eastern Underwriter, a trade publication devoted to the insurance business, with which organization I am at present associated and employed, functioning in the capacity of publisher.

I was excluded from participating in the two World Wars -- first, because of my married and children status; second, on account of my age. Mrs. Hadley and I adopted and raised five children, one boy and four girls. All are grown.

Our son, James William Hadley, has recently returned to civilian life after two four-year periods of service in the United States Marine Corps. He came home with a rating of Supply Sergeant. He functioned in that capacity with the 4th Marines, and saw active duty in the South Pacific.

Our youngest daughter, Mrs. Amy Ruth Chesser, wife of Captain Robert Lee Chesser, and their son Robert Lee Chesser, Jr., are living with us in Plainfield. Captain Chesser, member of the Army Air Corps, based in Italy, was reported missing in action on May 25, 1944, the day prior to the birth of his son here in Plainfield.

Lewis G. Hansen

COUNTY:-

Hudson

ADDRESS:

43 Webstor Ave, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer-Banker

Born in Jersey City on November 18, 1891. Awarded a Master's degree in law by New York University in 1913, he has been a counsellor-at-law in New Jersey since 1916 and is a Supreme Court Commissioner. He served in the New Jersey Legislature and has been First Assistant Prosecutor of Hudson County; Assistant Corporation Counsel of Jersey City, and was appointed by Governor A. Harry Moore as Judge of the Second District Court of Jersey City.

He has been President of the Franklin National Bank since 1938, and in 1945 was elected President of the Hudson County Bankers' Association.

He served in the United States Navy during World War I and was Director of Civilian Defense for Jersey City in World War II.

 $$\operatorname{\text{He}}$ was the Democratic candidate for Governor in 1946.

In March, 1929, Judge Hansen married Miss Medora Ritchie of Montclair. They have a daughter, Joan Dix Hansen, age 15.

Albert H. Holland

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:

Morris Morristown

OCCUPATION:

Judge

Born in New York City in 1891; has lived in Morristown since 1900. Graduated from the New York Law School with the degrees of LL.B and LL.M., was admitted to the Bar of New Jersey in 1913 as an attorney, and in 1916 as a counsellor. Enlisted in the Army in World War I, and was honorably discharged as a Captain FARC.

An independent Democrat, he was appointed in 1921 by Governor Edwards as a member of the Morris County Tax Board; in 1925 by Governor Silzer as Prosecutor of the Pleas for Morris County; in 1928, 1933 and 1938 by Governor Moore as Morris Common Pleas Judge, and in 1943 reappointed by Governor Edison.

For seven years, he was President of the Morris-Sussex Area Council, Boy Scouts of America. He is a former President of the Morris County Bar Association, and has been active in civic and fraternal organizations. He is a member of the Board of Directors of Remington Arms Company, Inc., and a Director of the Morristown and Erie Railroad Company.

NALE:

Charles P. Hutchinson

COUNTY:

Mercer

ADDRESS:

846 Parkside Avenue, Trenton

OCCUPATION:

Judge

Born in Trenton, New Jersey, on October 17, 1887, and has resided there ever since. He is the son of the late Barton B. Hutchinson, who served for two terms as a member of the Assembly and two terms as a member of the Senate of New Jersey. He was graduated from Princeton University in 1909, with the degree of A. B., and from New York Law School in 1912 with the degree of LL.B. He was admitted to the New Jersey Bar as an attorney in June, 1912, and as a counsellor in June, 1915, and practiced law with his father until the death of the latter in 1928.

He served as Assistant United States Attorney and Special Assistant to the United States Attorney from 1921 to 1924. In November, 1927, he was elected County Clerk of Mercer County, to which office he was elected for three successive terms, serving in all some $17\frac{1}{2}$ years in this office. On April 2, 1945, by appointment of Governor Edge, he became Judge of the Court of Common Pleas of Mercer County, in which office he is now serving.

He is a trustee of the Mercer County, and member of the New Jersey and American Bar Associations. He is also a member of Trenton Lodge No. 5, F. & A. M.; the Society of Colonial Wars; Sons of the American Revolution; the American Legion and other veteran organizations; and other clubs and organizations.

He is a member of the Chapter of Trinity Cathedral. (Episcopal) of Trenton and of the Standing Committee of the Episcopal Diocese of New Jersey.

He is married to the former Laura D. Reading and they have two children, Sarah Ellen and Charles P., Jr.

In politics he is a Republican.

Nathan L. Jacobs

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

284 W. Hobart Gap Road, Livingston

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born February 28, 1905. Attended elementary schools at Bayonne, New Jersey. Received B.S. in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania in 1925; LL.B. from Harvard Law School in 1928 and S.J.D. from Harvard Law School in 1931. Admitted to the New Jersey Bar as attorney in 1928 and as counsellor in 1931. Associate and Note Editor of Harvard Law Review (1926-1928) and holder of Sears Prize (1927) and Judah P. Benjamin fellowship (1930-1931). Practiced law with Arthur T. Vanderbilt from 1928 to 1934, and as a member of Frazer, Stoffer & Jacobs, 744 Broad Street, Newark, New Jersey, from 1934 to date.

Chief Deputy Commissioner and counsel to D. Frederick Burnett, State Commissioner of Alcoholic Beverage Control, from 1934 to 1939. State Attorney and District Enforcement Attorney of the Office of Price Administration, Newark, New Jersey, from 1942 to 1945. Professor of Administrative Law at Mercer Beasley School of Law and University of Newark (now Rutgers University School of Law), from 1929 to date.

Author of Study on State Administrative Agencies (1938), Proposed Election Law and Report Thereon (1940), and articles in Harvard Law Review and Mercer Boasley Law Review. Member of the New Jersey State Bar Association and Essex County Bar Association and American Bar Association.

NAME: COUNTY: ADDRESS: Christian J. Jorgensen

Middlesex

ADDRESS: OGCUPATION:

45 Lincoln Street, Fords

Lawyer

Born in Perth Amboy, New Jersey, December 19, 1910, and received his preliminary education in the public schools of Perth Amboy, graduating from that city's high school in June, 1929. Graduated Ohio University with degree of Bachelor of Arts in 1932, having completed prescribed four-year course in three years; attended Mercer Beasley School of Law and New Jersey Law School, graduating from the latter with degree of Bachelor of Laws in 1935.

He was admitted to the Bar as attorney in 1936; as a counsellor in 1939; appointed Special Master in Chancery, 1946, and Supreme Court Commissioner, 1947. Since admission he has been associated with former Attorney-General David T. Wilentz, in the practice of law, with offices at 117 Smith Street, Perth Amboy, New Jersey.

On January 21, 1957, he married Gertrude A. Bolte of Lakewood, Ohio, and they reside in Raritan Township, at 45 Lincoln Street, Post Office Fords, New Jersey. They have three children: Gertrude, 8; Pamela 4; and Christian III, 2.

Appointed Commissioner of Edison Park by Governor A. Harry Moore in 1939; re-appointed by Governor Charles Edison in 1944; elected to New Jersey House of Assembly 1942; Police Judge in Township of Raritan since 1943; Democratic State Committeeman, Middlesex County; member Raritan Lodge \$\frac{1}{16}\$ 61, F. and A. M; B. P. O. Elks \$\frac{1}{17}\$ 784; Perth Amboy and Middlesex County Bar Associations and numerous political, civic and sportsmen organizations. He holds a world's light tackle fishing record.

NAME: COUNTY: Marie H. Katzenbach

Mercer

ADDRESS: OCCUPATION:

Box 188, Princeton

Born in Trenton, New Jersey, on December 8, 1882, but has recently moved near Princeton. She is the daughter of Cleveland and Matilda E. Hilson, and the wife of Edward L. Katzenbach, who died in December, 1934. She has two sons, Edward L. Katzenbach, Jr., and Nicholas deB. Katzenbach. She served for a number of years as cataloger and Chief of Staff of the Trenton Free Public Library. Mrs. Katzenbach was appointed to the State Board of Education by Governor Edwards in 1921; reappointed in 1929 by Governor Larson, and reappointed by Governor Hoffman in 1937.

In 1945 she was appointed a member of the reorganized State Board of Education by Governor Edge for four years, her term expiring 1949.

Mrs. Katzenbach is a member of the Board of Trustees of Rutgers University; President of the Board of Managers of the Union Industrial Home Association of Trenton, New Jersey; lst Vice-President of the Family Service Association of Trenton, New Jersey; and member of the Board of Directors of the Trenton Community Chest and Council.

NAME: COUNTY: Henry T. Kays

ADDRESS:

Sussex Newton

OCCUPATION:

Vice-Chancellor

Vice-Chancellor Henry T. Kays was born at mowton, N. J., September 29, 1878. He is a son of the late Thomas M. and Marielle Ryerson (Anderson) Kays. He is a great grandson of Supreme Court Justice Thomas Cox Ryerson and a grandnephew of Martin Ryerson, also a Supreme Court Justice of New Jersey and a delegate to the Constitutional Convention of 1844. The Vice-Chancellor is also a kinsman of Governor Daniel Haines.

Vice-Chancellor Kays was graduated from Princeton University with the class of 1903.

During 1910-11 he was a member of the Board of Freeholders of Sussex county and in 1911-12 was appointed County Counsel; he was again appointed County Counsel in 1917, retaining the office until his appointment to the Court of Chancery.

Vice-Chancellor Kays represented Sussex county in the Assembly of New Jersey in 1913, 1914, 1915. In 1918 he was elected State Senator from Sussex County, and was reelected in 1921. He was chosen minority leader for the 1921 session. During World War I he was Federal Food Administrator for Sussex county.

Vice-Chancellor Kays was appointed a Judge of the Court of Errors and Appeals by Governor Silzer in 1924 to succeed Judge Ernest J. Heppenheimer, resigned. In order to accept the appointment, he resigned as a State Senator on March 8, 1924, and on the same day was sworn in as a member of the Court of Errors and Appeals.

Vice-Chancellor Kays resigned as Judge of the Court of Errors and Appeals to accept the Vice-Chancellorship to which he was appointed by Chancellor Campbell. He was sworn into office on June 24, 1935, and reappointed June 24, 1942.

In politics, the Vice-Chancellor is a Democrat. He sits in Essex, Sussex and Warren counties.

Vice-Chancellor Kays! Chambers in Newton are in the Sussex and Merchants National Bank Building.

He married K_a therine Van Blarcom, the daughter of the late Captain Lewis Van Blarcom, and resides in Newton.

Wesley L. Lance

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:
OCCUPATION:

Hunterdon Glon Gardner Law - Judge

Judge, Court of Common Pleas, Hunterdon County.

Education

Graduate of Glen Gardner Public Schools, Hampton High School, Lafayette College, and Harvard Law School.

Professional Experience

Attorney for various financial institutions in Hunterdon County.

Professor of Trusts, John Marshall Law

School.

Governmental

(a) State

Assemblyman, Hunterdon County (1938, 1939, 1940 and 1941). As Assemblyman, introduced and secured passage of proposed amendment of Article IX of the New Jersey State Constitution, proposing that amendments be submitted to the people at a general, rather than a special, election.

Elected State Senator from Hunterdon County in November, 1941

llember, New Jersey Commission on Statutes (1943), State Commission on Post-War Economic Development (1943), and Appropriations Committee in State Senate (1942, 1943).

(b) County

Former attorney for Board of Freeholders, Hunterdon County.

(c) Municipal

Attorney for various municipalities.

Business Experience

Director and Vice-President, Hunterdon County Trust Company, (1937 to date); director of High Bridge Building & Loan Association, (1937 to date).

Military

Resigned from State Senate July, 1943, to enter U. S. Navy; served aboard aircraft carrier; honorably discharged in February, 1946.

Miscellaneous

Organized in 1937 and present President of Tri-County Baseball League, composed of teams from North-west Jersey and Eastern Fennsylvania; president, Hunterdon County Basketball League; member, Sydney Progressive Grange.

Leon Leonard

COUNTY:

Atlantic

ADDRESS:

3 North Newton Avenue, Atlantic City

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born March 11, 1909. Graduated from Atlantic City High School and Dickinson Law School. Admitted as an attorney in 1930, and as a counsellor in 1933.

Momber of the Elks (Past Exalted Ruler); Board of Directors of the Atlantic City Community Center; Board of Trustees of the United Jewish Appeal.

Married and has one child.

Elected to the Assembly for the first time at the November, 1940 election, and reelected in 1941, 142, 143, 144, 145, and 146. Majority Leader in the 1946 Assembly. Speaker of the House of the 1947 session.

City Solicitor of the City of Atlantic City.

LEWIS Arthur W.

NAME:

Arthur W. Lewis

COUNTY:

Burlington

ADDRESS:

Thomas Avenue, Riverton

OCCUPATION: Attorney

Born September 22, 1904, Practicing lawyer since 1931, maintaining law offices at 423 Market Street, Camden, New Jersey; Professor of Constitutional Law and New Jersey Practice at South Jersey Law School, where he received LL. B. degree in 1930.

Served in New Jersey House of Assembly, 1943 - 1944, and has been a member of the New Jersey Senate since 1945.

Trustee, West Jersey Hospital, College of South Jersey, Riverton Country Club; Director, Cinnaminson Bank and Trust Company, Fidelity Mutual Savings and Loan Association, Guarantee and American Building and Loan Associations; Member, Rotary Club, Union League of Philadelphia, Medford Lakes Colony Club, American Bar Association, National Republican Club, Calvary Presbyterian Church of Riverton.

Married Lillian Alberta Hess of Audubon, New Jersey, in 1936; has two sons, Robert S. and Russell C.; resides at 714 Thomas Avenue, Riverton, New Jersey.

Milton C. Lightner

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS: OCCUPATION:

300 Murray Ave., Ridgewood Executive Vice-President

Born April 11, 1890, Detroit, Michigan; son of Edwin N. Lightner and Jane Cass Lightner. University of Michigan, A.B., 1910, and Harvard Law School, I.L.B., 1913. Practiced law in New York 1913-1927; thereafter Vice-President of The Singer Manufacturing Company.

Served in Squadron "A", National Guard, New York, 1914-1917, and in U. S. Army, 1917-1919, being discharged in 1919 as Captain Q.M.C.

A resident of Ridgewood, New Jersey, since 1919. Office address: 149 Broadway, New York City.

Francis V. D. Lloyd

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS:

537 Teaneck Road, Ridgefield Park

OCCUPATION:

T.OW

Francis V. D. Lloyd was born on April 26th, 1896 in New York City, New York, his parents being Grace Morris Van Duyne and Frank Austin Lloyd. He resides with his wife, the former Evelyn M. Roth, and family at No. 537 Teaneck Road, Ridgefield Park, New Jersey. He has three children - Anne, Eve and Frank V.D. Lloyd.

He attended the public schools and New York Law School, from which he graduated in 1917 with an LL.B. Degree. He was admitted to the Bar of New Jersey in 1917.

Judge Lloyd served in World War I as an Ensign in the United States Naval Reserve. On his return from naval service in 1919, he took up the practice of law in Hackensack, New Jersey, becoming a member of the firm of Morrison, Lloyd and Morrison, one of the oldest and leading firms of lawyers in Northern New Jersey, the name of which firm was recently changed to Morrison, Lloyd and Griggs. In addition to their extensive private practice, Judge Lloyd's firm is also counsel for the Bergen County Bankers Association, the New Jersey State Safe Deposit Association and a number of financial institutions and corporations. He has devoted a large part of his time to the affairs of thrift and home financing.

In this connection, he has been actively identified with the New Jorsey Savings and Loan League, serving on its Board of Governors and also as its President during 1930 - 1931. He is a life member of its Board of Managers and has been active as a member of many of its important committees. He has also served as chairman of the Legal Committee of the United States Building and Loan League; was named by President Hoover as a delegate to his conference on home building and home ownership, and was one of the members of the New Jersey Building and Loan Finance Committee, cooperating with the Reconstruction and Finance Corporation.

Upon the organization of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Judge Lloyd was named a director and was elected president of what is now the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, a position he held until the bank was in full operation and upon a dividend earning basis, after which he resigned as president, becoming vice-chairman of its board of directors, a position he presently holds. On January 3, 1946, he was appointed as a Public Interest Director of the Bank by the Federal Home Loan Bank Administration in Washington, D. C.

In February, 1930, Judge Lloyd was appointed by the then Governor of New Jersey to be Judge of the Fifth Judicial District Court of Bergen County, to which office he was re-appointed by Governor Harold G. Hoffman in February, 1938.

He is a member of the American, New Jersey and Bergen County Bar Associations and has been a member of important committees of those associations. He was also president of the Bergen County Bar Association during 1939 - 1940.

Judge Lloyd has been a director of the Bergen County Chamber of Commerce for many years, and served as its vice-president from 1940 - 1947.

In 1940, he was appointed by President Roosevelt as Government Appeal Agent under the Selective Training and Service Act.

Judge Lloyd is active in public and civic affairs. He is chairman of the board of trustees of Holy Name Hospital in Teaneck, New Jersey. He is also a member of the Arcola Country Club, Arcola, New Jersey, and the Lawyers Club of New York.

Thorn Lord

COUNTY:

Mercer

ADDRESS:

Province Line Road, Princeton

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

I was born in Plainfield, New Jersey, on August 24, 1906. I am a momber of the Protestant Episcopal Church. I attended the University of the South, Harvard Law School, University of North Carolina and University of Pennsylvania. I have been Legal Assistant and Law Clerk to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Third Judicial Circuit, Assistant United States Attorney, Chief Assistant United States Attorney and United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey, resigning in October of 1945. Subsequently, I served as a Chairman of one of the Special Clemency Boards of the War Department, and I am now engaged in the practice of law in Trenton and Newark, in the firm of Lord and Hughes.

I am manried and have two children. I reside in Lawrence Township,

Edward A. McGrath

COUNTY:

Union

ADDRESS:

829 Stanton Ave., Elizabeth

OCCUPATION:

Judge

Admitted to the New Jersey Bar as attorney, 1916; as counsellor, 1919. Appointed by Governor Silzer to First District Court of Union County, 1924. Appointed by Governor Moore to Union County Common Pleas Court, 1932; reappointed by Governor Moore and Governor Edison. Professor of Constitutional Law at John Marshall College of Law, five years. Professor in Advanced Practice and Equity, two years. Author of "Trial Evidence," a New Jersey textbook, and numerous articles for legal publications.

Member of Speaker's Committee of Governor Edison's Committee for Constitutional Reform. Appointed chairman of the Governor's Advisory Committee for the Selective Service Act by Governor Edison.

President of the U.S.O. of Eastern Union County; past president of Union County Bar Association; past member of the First National Committee of the American Legion; past State Adjutant and County Commander of the American Legion.

Wayne McMurray

COUNTY:

Monmouth

ADDRESS:

606 6th Avenue, Asbury Park

OCCUPATION:

Editor

Newspaper executive. Born Gloucester City, N. J., May 11, 1897; son John H. McMurray (deceased) and Helen M. (Dickensheets) McMurray. Educated, Asbury Park High School; New York University 1917.

Editor and publisher, Asbury Park Evening Press and Asbury Park Sunday Press; President, Asbury Park Press, Inc. President, Monmouth County Welfare Board; chairman, Asbury Park Planning Board; member, New Jersey Council (1939-41); member, N. J. Committee for Constitutional Revision (1944).

Served as Private, First Class, 220th Engineers, during World War I. Member, Monmouth County Press Ass'n (president, 1930), New Jersey Press Association (president 1939, reelected 1940), American Legion Post #24; United States Power Squadrons (Shrewsbury Squadron); Chief Boatswain Mate (T) U. S. Coast Guard Reserve (1941-1945); member Long Branch Tce Boat and Yacht Club.

Father, John H. McMurray, was editor Camden Daily Courier, member N. J. Assembly.

Office, Asbury Park Press, Asbury Park, N. J.

(Mrs.) Gene W. Miller

COUNTY:

Union

ADDRESS:

152 Beekman Road, Summit

OCCUPANT:

Housewife

Descendant of Mathew Craddock, first Royal Governor of Massachusetts, and of David Williams, youthful capturer of Major Andre.

Born in Winterset, Iowa, 1906. Family moved to Grand Junction, Colorado, in 1909. Graduated from Grand Junction schools and from the University of Southern California with a major in English and Journalism. Taught English in schools of Grand Junction and Des Moînes, Iowa, for four years.

Married Richard L. Miller in 1931, and moved to New Jersey. Two sons: Richard Williams, 8 years, and Damon Craddock, 4 months. Husband is Assistant General Manager of the Actuarial Department, Prudential Insurance Company.

Civic Activities: President, Summit League of Women Voters, 1943-45; at present, Secretary of the State Board of the League of Women Voters. Appointed by Governor Edge to the Public Library Commission (now Advisory Council). Member of Local Assistance Board in Summit. Has been active in Constitutional Revision since 1940. Member, Speakers' Bureau, Constitutional Revision Committee and Constitution Foundation. Made some 100 speeches throughout State, taught classes on Constitution, and was co-chairman with Mayor in Summit's Constitutional Revision Committee.

Member of League of Women Voters, Presbyterian Church, Americal Association of University Women, Interacial Committee, Y. W. C. A., Fortnightly Club, Beta Sigma Omicron Social Sorority, and Phi Kappa Sigma, Education Fraternity.

Spencer Miller, Jr.

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

217 Turrell Avenue, South Orange,

OCCUPATION: State Highway Commissioner

Spencer Miller, Jr. was born in Worcester, Massachusetts, July 2, 1891. The same year his family moved to South Orange, his present home. He attended local private schools and the public high school, and was graduated from the Bordentown Military Institute in 1908. Four years later he was graduated from Amherst College with the degree of A.B., and pursued his graduate studies at Columbia University in Public Law and Government from 1912 to 1915. He received the degree of M.A. in Government in 1914 and was appointed Fellow in Public Law the same year. Continuing his studies in political science, he completed his resident requirements for Doctor of Philosophy in 1915. After 16 months in public administration as Assistant to the Warden of Sing Sing Prison, he returned to Columbia University for graduate training in mechanical engineering. Honorary degrees of LL.D. were conferred on him by Kenyon College in 1937 and Litt.D. from Rutgers University in 1943.

During World War I, he was associated first with the United States Labor Department and later served in the Industrial Division of the United States Navy Department. Returning to Columbia at the close of the war, he was appointed Instructor in Government. In 1921 he was elected Director of the Workers Education Bureau of America for the adult education of industrial workers. Subsequently he helped establish the first Institute of Labor in the United States at Rutgers University and extended the plan to 35 colleges throughout the country. Fordham University School of Social Service appointed him Lecturer on Labor Problems from 1933 to 1935. Subsequently he was appointed Consultant and Teacher Trainer in In-Service Training for Vocational Teachers in the New Jersey Department of Education, October 1939, and served in that capacity until March 1942, lecturing extensively at universities throughout the United States and in Europe.

In 1935 he was appointed External Collaborator at the International Labor Office of the League of Nations at Ceneva, Switzerland. In 1937 he was made Associate Director of the American Youth Commission and prepared a report on Technical Education in England, France and Germany. He served as Round Table Leader, Institute of Public Affairs, University of Virginia 1930 to 1940.

From 1939 to 1944, he served first as Trustee, then as President of the Village of South Orange, and Commander of the South Orange Defense Council during World War II. In 1941 he was appointed Lecturer on Industrial Relations at the School of Commerce at New York University, and in 1946 Lecturer in the Graduate School of Business at the University. He was appointed Adjunct Professor of Industrial Relations in 1947.

MILLER Spencer, Jr. (2)

In May 1942, Governor Edison appointed him State Highway Commissioner. He was also appointed a member of the State Planning Board, a member of the Highway Traffic Advisory Committee to the War Department, and the Commission on Interstate Cooperation. In addition he was elected Vice-President of the American Association of State Highway Officials, a member of the Executive Committee of the American Association of State Highway Officials and the Board of Directors of the Association of Highway Officials of the North Atlantic States.

He is President of the New Jersey Constitution Foundation, former Chairman of the New Jersey Committee for a Constitutional Convention and a member of the Executive Committee of the New Jersey Constitutional Convention for Constitutional Revision. He is a member of the Youth and Government Committee of the Y.H.C.A., State Chairman of the National Conference of Christians and Jews, and Co-Chairman of the United Negro College Fund for New Jersey; also a member of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers, the Academy of Political Science and other learned societies. He is a member of the Trenton Club, the Orange Lawn Tennis Club, the Amherst Club of New York, the Alpha Delta Phi and Pi Gamma Mu (honorary) fraternities.

He is the author of "The Church and Industry" with Joseph Fletcher, "The Church Must Decide," "American Workers! Education" with Dr. Mollie Ray Carroll, and editor of "What the International Labor Office Means to America," and other publications.

Mr. Miller is a Trustee of Hobart and William Smith College, the Veterans' Center of the Oranges, and a member of the Church of the Holy Communion of South Orange, New Jersey.

In October 1928, Mr. Miller married Margaret Montague Geer of Nutley, New Jersey, and New York. They have three children - Ann Montague, Spencer III and Sidney Geer.

John Milton

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

131 Kensington Avenue, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Mr. Milton was born January 21, 1881. He was admitted to the Bar as an attorney at the February term, 1903, and as a counsellor-at-law at the February term, 1906. He was Assistant City Attorney of Jersey City from January 1908, until March 1911; Corporation Counsel of Jersey City from June 1913, to January 1, 1922; Prosecutor of Hudson County from 1923 to 1928.

He was appointed to the United States Senate by Governor A. Harry Moore, January 18, 1938, to succeed the latter, who resigned from the United States Senate to become Governor of New Jersey.

 $$\operatorname{Mr.}$ Milton married Margaretta A. Rîckerich, and they have three children, John L., Charles J., and Anne D. O'Mara.

John L. Montgomery

COUNTY:

Monmouth

ADDRESS:

50 West Front St., Red Bank

OCCUPATION:

Director of Welfare, Monmouth County

Born - May 6,1885 in Hersman, Illinois.

Education - Topeka, Kansas, High School Washburn College, Topeka, Kansas, 1908

Previous positions - Chief Probation Officer, Santa Clara County, Cal. Supt. of Preston School of Industry, Ione, Cal.

Present positions -

Monmouth County Adjuster since 1921. Director of Welfare of Monmouth County

since 1929.

Chief Probation Officer of Monmouth

County since 1936.

Referee of the Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court since 1942.

Married - Gladys Hardy (deceased). One son, John L., Jr.

NAME: COUNTY:

J. Francis Moroney Warren

ADDRESS:

93 South Main Street, Phillipsburg

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Educated in Phillipsburg, N.J., schools; A.B. from Villanova College, LL.B. from Georgetown Law School. Admitted to the New Jersey Bar in April, 1931. Assemblyman from Warren County in the year 1935.

John L. Morrissey

COUNTY:

Camden

ADDRESS:

3821 Myrtle Avenue, Camden

OCCUPATION:

Senator-Lawyer

Mr. Morrissey was born December 30, 1908, in Camden, N. J. He was educated at Camden Catholic High School and South Jersey Law School, and is a lawyer.

He has held the chairmanship of Camden's Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, was Assistant City Solicitor of Camden, Assistant U. S. District Attorney and City Solicitor of Camden. Resigned as City Solicitor of Camden city in April, 1946, and was elected Solicitor of Camden County in September, 1946.

Elected to the Senate for the first time at the November, 1944, election. He was minority leader at the 1946 Senate session.

Francis D. Murphy

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRESS:

33 62nd Street, West New York

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born in West New York, November 11, 1900. He attended the West New York public schools, Seton Hall Preparatory School, and Fordham College, and graduated from Fordham University School of Law in 1928.

He was admitted to the Bar of New York in 1930 and to the Bar of New Jersey in 1935. He is a member of the law firm of Murphy & Tierney, 52 Wall Street, New York City.

He is a Member of the Board of Education, West New York, and was President of the Board of Education in 1935. He was elected a Commissioner of the Town of West New York in 1935.

Mr. Murphy is a member of the North Hudson Lawyers' Club and the Knights of Columbus. Denis J. Murphy, his father, was formerly Mayor of West New York.

MURRAY Frank J.

NAME:

Frank J. Murray

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

142 Cleveland Street, Orange

OCCUPATION: , Attorney

Mr. Murray was born in New York City, May 17, 1884, and was graduated from the Orange High School in 1902 and the New York University Law School in 1905. He was admitted to the New Jersey Bar as an attorney in 1907 and as a counsellor in 1911.

Mr. Murray was a member of Common Council of Orange, N. J. in 1909, 1910 and 1911; member of the House of Assembly of New Jersey in 1912; Mayor of Orange in 1913 and 1914; City Commissioner of Orange from 1914 to 1922; and was again Mayor of Orange from 1922 to April 3, 1934, when he resigned.

Mr. Murray was State Comptroller from April 4, 1934 to September, 1941.

He was president of the Orange First National Bank from 1933 to 1940, is Counsel and a member of the Board of Managers of Orange Savings Bank, and Vice-President of the Sinking Fund Commission of the City of Orange.

Mr. Murray is a Trustee of St. John's Church. He is married and the father of seven children.

George T. Naame

COUNTY:

Atlantic

ADDRESS:

19 North Dorset Avenue, Ventnor City

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born, October 27, 1901, Trenton, N. J. Attended public schools in Atlantic City and graduated from Atlantic City High School, June, 1919. Attended Dickinson School of Law and received the degree of L.L.B. in 1922.

Admitted to the New Jersey Bar, October term, 1924, and to practice in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey as attorney and proctor, 1924. Appointed a Master in Chancery, January 26, 1933. Became a counsellor-at-law, January 26, 1933. Admitted and qualified as counsellor and advocate, etc., to the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, January 26, 1933. Appointed a Special Master in Chancery, February 16, 1939, and a Supreme Court Commissioner, June 7, 1945.

Appointed Judge of Atlantic City District Court, January 13, 1942, by Governor Charles Edison. Member of the New Jersey State Bar Association; member and presently First Vice-President of the Atlantic County Bar Association.

Member of Sigma Chi Fraternity, Corpus Juris (legal society of Dickinson School of Law), and Atlantic City Exchange Club.

Married to Margaret S. Schreadley on June 5, 1922. Three children, two daughters and a son.

Presently engaged in the practice of law at 522 Guarantee Trust Building, Atlantic City.

Edward J. O'Mara

COUNTY:

Hudson

ADDRELS:

139 Gifford Avenue, Jersey City

OCCUPATION:

Senator-Lawyer

Born in Jersey City, May 6, 1897, the eldest son of Walter O'Mara and Margaret Bailey O'Mara. He was educated in St. Peter's Preparatory School, Jersey City, and Fordham University, from which he received the degree of Bachelor of Arts in 1919. He studied law at Fordham Law School and was graduated the honor man of his class in 1922, receiving the degree of Bachelor of Laws. He was admitted to the Bar of New Jersey as an attorney at the February term, 1922, and as a counsellor-at-law at the March term, 1925. He was a member of the faculty of Fordham Law School from 1924 to 1929.

He has been actively engaged in practicing law in Jersey City since his admission to the Bar, and since 1926 has been a member of the firm of Wall, Haight, Carey and Hartpence.

During World War I he served in the United States Navy.

He was counsel to the Hudson County Park Commission from 1924 to 1934, when he resigned to become Assistant Corporation Counsel of Jersey City, which office he resigned in 1938 to devote his entire attention to his private practice. He is Past President of the Hudson County Bar Association and a member of the New Jersey State and American Bar Associations.

On April 2, 1923, he was married to Margaret McOsker of Jersey City, and they have three sons and three daughters.

He was elected to the Senate for the first time at the November, 1940, election and was re-elected in 1943 and 1946. He was Minority Leader of the Senate of 1943 and 1945.

William J. Orchard

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

50 Sagamore Road, Maplewood

OCCUPATION:

Industrialist

Born November 15, 1888, at Boston, Massachusetts, the son of Edward and Elizabeth (Sayce) Orchard. Graduate Sanitary Engineer of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, 1911. Married Marie Frances Singler on February 1, 1913. Children: John E., William, Robert, Sally Orchard Keating, and Jane. Eight grandchildren.

Served as Sanitary Engineer with the Metropolitan Water Board, Boston, Massachusetts, and the New
Jersey State Department of Health. Entered Wallace & Tiernan
Company, Inc., in 1915 to become General Manager. Now President and Director of Wallace & Tiernan Products, Inc.; Secretary and Treasurer of Wallace & Tiernan Sales Corporation;
Vice-President, Treasurer, and Director of the Novadel-Agene
Corporation and the Industrial Appliance Corporation.

President and Member of The Board of Governors of the Orange Memorial Hospital, Orange, New Jersey. Chairman of the Maplewood Citizens Committee; Past President and Director of Maplewood Civic Association. Past Vice-President and now Trustee of the Community Chest of the Oranges and Maplewood. Past President and Director of the Chamber of Commerce and Civics of the Oranges and Maplewood. Treasurer of Maplewood Community Service. Essex County Republican Committeeman. Trustee of the Essex County Parental Echool.

During war years was Chairman of the Maplewood Citizens War Bond Committee, as well as General Chairman of the Community Manpower Mobilization Committee of Essex, Hudson, and Union Counties - a voluntary effort to recruit manpower and solve labor problems of the area. Awarded the Roosevelt Medal by the War Manpower Commission and the Medal of Merit for work in this latter activity.

Past President of the Water & Sewage Works Manufacturers' Association; Honorary Member and Director of the American Water Works Association; Fellow, American Public Health Association. Honorary Member and Director of the Federation of Sewage Works Association.

President of the Bay Head Improvement Association. Past Commodore of the Barnegat Bay Yacht Racing Association. Past Vice-Commodore of the Bay Head Yacht Club.

Member of Essex Club (Newark); Rotary (Belleville, N. J.); Chemists' Club (New York City); Maplewood Country Club; Bay Head Yacht Club.

Author of "Thoughts in Rhyme" and several musical numbers, as well as many articles on the chlorination of water and related subjects.

Hobbies: Music and sailing.

Office: 11 Mill Street, Belleville, 9, New Jersey. Summer home: 56 Karge Street, Bay Head, New Jersey.

Lawrence N. Park

COUNTY:

Gloucester

ADDRESS:

219 East High Street, Glassboro

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born, April 17, 1907, at Glassboro, New Jersey; father, Clarence J. Park (deceased); mother, Lyda Clouse Park (deceased). Married to Ruth Lewis Park; one son, Robert Lawrence Park.

Education: Glassboro High School, 1924; Temple University Law School, 1930, L.L.B. Served clerkship with Hon. Frank F. Neutze, Camden.

Admitted to Bar as attorney in 1931; as counsellor in 1935. Associate of Robert J. Tait Paul, Esq., 300 Broadway, Camden, in general practice of law.

Professor of Constitutional Law, Temple University School of Law, (other subjects, Contracts, Torts, Real Property, New Jersey Practice).

Military: Enlisted as Corporal in 1st Bn. 302nd Ord. Reg., in June, 1942; Commissioned 2nd Lt. Ord. Dept., in April, 1943 after graduation from Ordnance O.C.S. at Aberdeen Proving Ground, Md. Claims Officer, Headquarters, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Md. Now Captain, Ord. Dept. Res. AUS.

Organizations: Army Ordnance Association; Hilitary Order of World Wars; American Legion, Shaw-Paulin Post, Glassboro; Rotary Club, Glassboro; Phi Alpha Delta (Legal); Camden County Bar Assn., Gloucester County Bar Assn.

Winston Paul

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

10 Crestmont Road, Montclair

OCCUPATION:

.

Born, New York City, October 31, 1887; resided in Jersey City for over 20 years and in South Orange and Montclair for the past 30 years. Graduate, Newark Academy and Columbia College.

Engaged in the electrical merchandizing business in New York and New Jersey for 20 years as distributor for Delco-Light and Frigidaire. Reorganized Huyler's, and Chairman of the Board for four years. President, Domestic Exploration Corporation and Rock-cliffe Realty Corporation.

Was first president of the New Jersey Constitution Foundation, later president of the New Jersey Committee for Constitutional Revision. Member of State Republican Committee.

NAME: Henry

Henry W. Peterson

COUNTY:

Gloucester

ADDRESS:

Delaware and Drexel Sts., Woodbury

OCCUPATION: Executive

Born in Philadelphia, Pa., on December 31, 1892. He attended the Philadelphia public schools and Central Manual Training High School (Class of 1911). He married Elizabeth Gillis Brown on January 25, 1911, and, after six months at a university, elected to enter upon a business career rather than continue in school.

Ho became associated with the Philadelphia Transportation and Lighterage Company, engaged in dredging and water transportation, and filled various positions, from stenographer to President of the company.

He moved to Woodbury, New Jersey, in 1929, after designing and building, at Paulsboro, the largest sand and gravel plant in New Jersey.

Chamber of Commerce, President of the Gloucester County Chamber of Commerce, organizer of the first centralized relief association in Gloucester County, Chairman of the Gloucester County American Red Cross Camp and Hospital Committee, Chairman of the Civilian Defense Council of Woodbury, Commander of the U. S. Citizens' Defense Corps of Woodbury, and Gloucester County Chairman of the National War Fund; and is presently Chairman of the Disaster Preparedness and Relief Committee of the Gloucester County Chapter of the American Red Cross, Chairman of the Gloucester County American Cancer Society, Member of the Zoning and Planning Commission, City of Woodbury, and Trustee of Deptford Institute. He is one of the two civilians who have been elected President of Philadelphia Post, Society of American Military Engineers.

Elected to Woodbury City Council in January 1935, he held the post of Finance Chairman until his election as President of Council in January 1941, which post he still holds. He was appointed a member of the South Jersey Port Commission on July 1, 1936, and, upon the death of the Hon. Albert C. Middleton, was elected Chairman of the Port Commission on June 21, 1939, which post he resigned on April 1, 1943, to become Secretary of the Commission, which position he still fills.

He is also a member of the Engineers! Club of Philadelphia, Camden Rotary Club, Camden Traffic Club, B.P.O.E. No. 2 Philadelphia, New Jersey Society of Professional Engineers, Radiant Star Lodge No. 606 F. & A. M. of Pennsylvania.

His family is comprised of his wife, two daughters, Mrs. M. B. Elliott of Van Nuys, California, and Mrs. John G. Kolb of Maple Glenn, Penna., and two grandchildren.

Pauline H. Peterson

COUNTY:

Salem

ADDRESS:

Penn's Grove, R. D.

OCCUPATION:

School Principal (supervising)

Pauline Peterson was born in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and spent her early childhood in Camden, New Jersey. The greater part of her life she has lived in Salem County outside of Penn's Grove in the ancestral home of her mother. Both parents were American-born, her father of German ancestry and her mother of English. She has one sister who is a teacher. Harold A. Peterson, her husband, is a wage incentive employee at the E. I. duPont de Nemours Chambers Works. They have a daughter 13 years of age.

Mrs. Peterson received her education in the Camden Public Schools, Camden and Penn's Grove High Schools, and Glassboro State Teachers College, graduating with a B. S. degree. She obtained her Master's Degree in Education at Temple University. Her teaching career began in the Penn's Grove school system. Later she went to Deepwater Elementary School and became principal. At the present time she is Supervising Principal of the Lower Penn's Neck Township Schools.

Her affiliations with organizations include the following: Order of the Eastern Star, Executive Committee in N.J.E.A., Vice President, N. S. Schoolwomen's Club, Salem County Scroptomist Club, American Association of University Women, Phi Delta Gamma, Delta Kappa Gamma, and many branches of educational organizations of the New Jersey Education Association and National Education Association.

The major part of her time has been spent in educational work and in educational and service organization.

Haydn Proctor

COUNTY:

Monmouth

ADDRESS:

1103 Sunset Ave., Asbury Park

OCCUPATION: Judge

Judge Proctor was born June 16, 1903, at Asbury Park. He was graduated from Neptune High School, 1922; Lafayette College, 1926, and Yale Law School, 1929. He is a counsellor-at-law, a Supreme Court Commissioner, a Special Master in Chancery.

He served in the House of Assembly in 1936 and 1937. He was Judge of the District Court of the First Judicial District of Monmouth County, appointed in 1937. Judge Proctor served as Chairman of the Joint Appropriations Committee for the years 1942 and 1943. He was elected to the Sonate for the first time at the November, 1938, election, and re-elected in 1941 and 1944. He was Sonate majority leader in 1945 and President of the Senate in 1946.

On December 30, 1946, at a Senate special session Senator Proctor was nominated by Governor Edge to a Circuit Court judge vacancy. He was at once confirmed, but announced that in justice to the people of Honmouth County he would continue in the Senate for the time. He took his place on the bench on March 12, 1947.

John H. Pursel

COUNTY:

Warren

ADDRESS:

550 Barrymore Street, Phillipsburg

OCCUPATION:

Lawyer

Born, Phillipsburg 1896. Widower. Two children. Education: Phillipsburg public schools, Lafayette College, Harvard Law School.

Counsellor-at-law, Supreme Court Commissioner, Special Master in Chancery, member of N. J. State and American Bar Associations, and Harvard Club of New York City.

Three terms in New Jersey Legislature; two terms as Warren County Counsel; New Jersey Counsel for Delaware River Joint Toll Bridge Commission; member and Secretary, Board of Managers, Annandale Reformatory. Formerly, President, Warren County Bar Association; member, Annandale Reformatory Selective Service Panel; President, Free Public Library of Phillipsburg; Chairman, Phillipsburg Chapter American Red Cross. Wrote article in New Jersey Law Journal, "Constitutional Convention of New Jersey."

H. Rivington Pyne

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:

Somerset Far Hills

OCCUPATION:

Senator-Public Relations

Senator Pyne was born January 16, 1892 in New York City. He is a member of the American Chemical Society and the Chemical Society of London.

He served as a member of the Borough Council of Bernardsville and was a member of the Assembly in 1936, 1937 and 1938.

He was graduated from Princeton University, 1914; Ph.D. in Chemistry from Columbia University. He was Attache of American Embassy in Berlin, 1915, and a Second Lieutenant, U. S. Air Force, 1917-1918.

He is a member of the Somerset County Welfare Board and of the Board of Trustees of the Somerset Hospital, and is Vice-Chairman of the Somerset Hills Chapter of the American Red Cross.

He was elected to the State Senate for the first time at the November, 1941, election, and re-elected in 1944.

John J. Rafferty

COUNTY:

Middlesex

ADDRESS:

298 Easton Ave., New Brunswick

OCCUPATION: Lawyer

Mr. Rafferty was born in Brooklyn, New York, April 17, 1896, and moved to New Jersey with his parents in 1905. He attended the public schools of Brooklyn, N. Y., and Piscataway Township, now Middlesex Borough, Middlesex County, N. J. Later he entered the New York Preparatory School, New York City, for evening study for the purpose of acquiring the equivalent of a high school education. Subsequently Mr. Rafferty studied law at the Law School of Fordham University, completing the course in 1926. He then served a law elerkship in the office of Hon. Fred W. Devoe at New Brunswick, and was admitted to practice as an attorney in this State in 1929.

Mr. Rafferty is Past Exalted Ruler of Bound Brook Lodge of Elks, a member of the State Elk's Association, a member of Bishop McFaul Council Knights of Columbus, and of the State Council K. of C., a member of the Exempt Firemen's Association of Middlesex County, and a member of various other civic and social associations. He also served as a member of the Board of Education of Middlesex Borough for four years, and in 1933 was elected Mayor of that borough. In 1934 Mr. Rafferty was elected chairman of the Middlesex County Democratic Committee.

Mr. Rafferty was elected to the Assembly in the 1930 election, and was re-elected in 1931, 1932, 1933, and 1934. He was Democratic leader in the House of Assembly at the 1933, 1934 and 1935 sessions.

Mr. Rafferty was appointed to the Court of Errors and Appeals by Governor Hoffman in June, 1935, and reappointed by Governor Edison in 1941, serving until July, 1947 when he returned to the private practice of law.

Oliver Randolph

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

123 South 13th Street, Newark

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Oliver Randolph, a lawyer, is a resident of Newark, with offices at 128 Market Street. He is a graduate of Wiley College, Marshall, Texas, and of Howard University Law School, Washington, D. C.

He was elected as a Republican member of the New Jersey Assembly in 1922 and served one term. Before the conclusion of his term, he was appointed an Assistant United States Attorney. He served in that office for more than ten years.

He is the author and sponsor of the New Jersey Anti-Lynching Law.

Ho is a member and an officer of St. John's Methodist Church, Newark, and is active in civic as well as political affairs. Ho is a member of Sigma Pi Phi, a graduate fraternity, Alumni House, Howard University North Jersey Alumni Club.

Mr. Randolph is married and lives in Newark, with his wife, Mrs. Bertha Baumann Randolph, who is a graduate of New England Conservatory of Music.

William T. Read

COUNTY:

Camden

ADDRESS:

103 Greenleigh Court, Merchantville

OCCUPATION:

Counsellor

Mr. Read was born in Camden, New Jersey, November 22, 1878. He was educated in the public schools of Camden and the William Penn Charter School of Philadelphia, and was graduated from the University of Pennsylvania in 1900 with the degree of Bachelor of Science.

He registered as a law student of J. Willard: Morgan, former State Comptroller, and attended the Law School of the University of Pennsylvania. He was admitted to the Bar of New Jersey as an attorney at the November term, 1903, and as a counsellor three years later.

In 1911 he was elected to the State Senate by Camden County and in 1914 was re-elected for a second term. During his term in the Senate, he was a member of the Jury Reform Commission, was the Minority Leader on the floor of the Senate in 1913 and 1914 and Majority Leader in 1915. He was President of the Senate in 1916.

He resigned his office of State Senator on March 29, 1916, and became State Treasurer on April 1st of that year. He was re-elected in 1919 for a second term, and in 1922 and again in 1925 he was selected unanimously for a third term and a fourth term, retiring in 1928. During his term as Treasurer he assisted in the establishment of the Toachers! Pension and Annuity Fund and the State Employees! Retirement System.

In 1930 he was appointed as a Trustee of the Teachers! Pension and Annuity Fund and was re-appointed for two successive terms. He resigned during the third term to become a member of the State Board of Control of Institutions and Agencies to which he was appointed in 1937 and re-appointed in 1945 for a full term.

In the first World War he served on the staff of General Spencer of the Department of Rifle Practice of the National Guard of the State of New Jersey, which branch of the service was not taken into the National Army. In the second World War he served as Chairman of Appeal Board No. 11 of the State of New Jersey under the United States Selective Service System.

NAME: (Mrs.) Olive C. Sanford

COUNTY: Essex

ADDRESS 144 Whitfield Ave., Nutley

OCCUPATION: Retired teacher.

Mrs. Sanford was born at Palmyra, N. Y. on December 19, 1875, was educated in the public schools of Palmyra and New York City and was graduated from Teachers College, Columbia University, in 1898.

After teaching for two years she was married in 1900 to Mr. F. H. Sanford, lived in South America and abroad for the next 14 years, when they returned to the United States. She has resided in Nutley since 1915.

Mrs. Sanford is a member of the Women's Club of Nutley and served as president from 1919 to 1921; Nutley League of Women Voters, president from 1925 to 1928; New Jersey League of Women Voters, president from 1928 to 1934; American Woman's Association, New York City; New Jersey Committee on the Cause and Cure of War, chairman from 1929 to 1934; American Association of University Women; Foreign Policy Association and the Academy of Political Science, Columbia University. Mrs. Sanford is also a member of the board of trustees, University of Newark, Newark. Mrs. Sanford was elected to the Board of Education of Nutley for two successive terms, from 1928 to 1934, and again in 1937 and 1940 for the three-year term. She has always been active in church and civic affairs of the community.

Mrs. Sanford was elected to the Assembly for the first time at the Hovember, 1934, election, and reelected in 1935, 1937, 1938, 1939, 1940 and 1941. For six terms she acted as chairman of the Education Committee, as well as serving on many other committees of the Legislature. In 1943 she was appointed by Governor Edison to the State Board of Education and in 1945 was appointed as a member of the reorganized State Board of Education by Governor Edge for the six-year term.

NAME: COUNTY: Wilbour Eddy Saunders

Mercer

ADDRESS: OCCUPATION:

321 Main Street, Hightstown, New Jersey Headmaster, Peddie School, Hightstown

Wilbour Eddy Saunders, B.A., M.A., D.D., Ed.D., LL.D., Headmaster of The Peddie School, Hightstown, New Jersey, was born in Warwick, Rhode Island, in 1894. His early schooling was obtained in the public schools of Providence, after which he entered Brown University in the fall of 1912. At Brown he was captain of the varsity debating team and a letter man on the track team. His fraternity was Delta Tau Delta.

Dr. Saunders received his Bachelor of Arts degree in 1916 from Brown University and then entered the Union Theological Seminary in New York City from which he graduated in 1919. While obtaining his theological training he was for two years a master in the Choir School of the Cathedral of St. John the Divine, and at the same time he also obtained his Master of Arts degree at Teachers College, Columbia University.

In 1917 Dr. Saunders was pastor's assistant at the West Park Presbyterian Church in New York. A year later he became assistant pastor of the Emmual Baptist Church in Brooklyn. In September, 1919, he married Hildred A. Paige of Brookline, Massachusetts, after which he spent a year in graduate work at Christ's College, Cambridge University, England, Guring which time he was in residence at Westminster College. He received his college blazer as a member of the Christ's College first tennis team. He also played center forward on the Westminster College Soccer team. In 1920 he returned to America to teach English and Latin at the Horace Mann School in New York.

Later he became assistant pastor of the Marcy Avenue Baptist Church, Brooklyn, remaining there two years and going from there to Rahway, New Jersey, as Pastor of the First Baptist Church. Three of the four years in Rahway he was also Chaplain of the New Jersey State Reformatory. In 1927 he returned to the Marcy Avenue Baptist Church in Brooklyn, this time to become pastor for a period of six years. While in Brooklyn he became General Secretary of e Brooklyn Federation of Churches.

In 1932 Dr. Saunders was called to Rochester, N. Y., to become Executive Secretary of the Rochester and Monroe County Federation of Churches, and to serve as Special Lecturer in Urban Sociology at the Colgate-Rochester Divinity School.

Dr. Saunders again entered the field of education when in February, 1935, he became Headmaster of The Peddie School, Hightstown, N. J., where he succeeded the late Dr. Roger J. Swetland. Under Dr. Saunders the School has made rapid advances in the field of secondary education; the curriculum as well as the physical plant have been expanded and modernized.

In June, 1936, Colgate University awarded him the honorary degree of Doctor of Divinity; in June, 1941, Brown University awarded him the honorary degree of Doctor of Education; and in May, 1943, Dickinson College awarded him the degree of Doctor of Laws.

Dr. Saunders is well-known as a public speaker, having addressed several hundred audiences in the last few years. He is a past president of the Hightstown, N. J., Y.H.C.A.; a trustee of Crozer Theological Seminary, Chester, Pa., Colgate-Rochester Divinity School, Rochester, N. Y., and of Wayland Academy, Beaver Dam, Wisconsin; a past president of the Association of Baptist Schools and Colleges; and a member of the Headmasters Association.

John F. Schenk

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:
OCCUPATION:

Hunterdon Flomington Executive

Born February 19, 1905, son of Henry Frelinghuysen Schenk and Mary Margaret Foran. Graduated Flemington High School, 1922, Canterbury School, New Milford, Conn., 1923, and Princeton University, 1927, B.S., magna cum laude.

President, Foran Foundry & Manufacturing Company, Flomington; Director, Hunterdon County National Bank, Flomington. Member, Local Government Board of New Jersey (1938-1947), by appointment of Governors Moore, Edison and Edge.

President, Board of Trustees, Flemington Children's Choir School; member, Flemington and Hunterdon County Shade Tree Commissions, and Grandview Grange and Pomona Grange; active member, Hunterdon County Historical Society.

Great-great grandson of Jacob R. Hardenbergh, member of Constitutional Convention of 1776; relative of Ferdinand S. Schenk, member of Constitutional Convention of 1844.

Harried Elizabeth Stryker; three daughters and one son.

NALE: Frank G. Schlosser

COUNTY: Hudson

ADDRESS: 1310 Garden Street, Hoboken

OCCUPATION: Lawyer

Born in Hoboken, New Jersey, on November 30, 1901, and is the son of Isabelle Thompson Schlosser and the late Frank J. Schlosser. He was graduated from Our Lady of Grace School, Hoboken, in 1916, and from Hoboken High School in 1920, and received the degree of Bachelor of Laws from Fordham University, from which he was graduated in 1924.

He was admitted to the New Jersey Bar at the October term, in 1925, and as a counsellor-at-law in 1928. In 1935 he was admitted to practice before the Bar of the United States Supreme Court. From 1930 to 1934 he was Kecorder of the City of Hoboken, and from 1934 until 1944 was Chief Legal Assistant to Daniel T. O'Regan, Prosecutor of the Pleas of Hudson County.

He is co-author with Judge O'Regan of two books on New Jersey criminal law. In 1944 he was a Deputy Attorney-General of the State of New Jersey under Walter D. Van Riper, Attorney-General, and then became Chief Enforcement Attorney for the Office of Price Administration in Northern New Jersey, which office he held until June, 1945, when he became Executive Assistant to Daniel T. O'Regan, County Counsel of Hudson County, which office he now holds.

He is married to the former Louise H. Droste. They have one daughter, Louise Isabelle, age 10.

NAIE:

Ralph J. Smalley

COUNTY:

Somerset

ADDRESS:

311 West End Ave., North Plainfield

OCCUPATION: Judge

Judge Smalley was born in North Plainfield, Somerset County, New Jersey, on October 25, 1895. He attended Cornell University and received his LL.B. from the New Jersey Law School. He was admitted to the Bar of New Jersey as an attorney in February, 1920, and as a counsellor-at-law in February, 1923.

Judge Smalley served as District Court Judge for a period of four years and as Judge of the Court of Common Pleas for Somerset County for a period of some 6g years. He was appointed to the Circuit Court by Governor Edge in September, 1946.

He is married and has three sons.

NAME: COUNTY: George F. Smith

Middlesex

ADDRESS:

110 Clive St., Hetuchen

OCCUPATION:

Industrialist

Born, Chicago, Ill., March 16, 1897. Educated in the Chicago public schools and night schools. He did not attend a recognized college. On September 20, 1919, he married Estelle Taylor. There are two children, Dorothy Smith Wilson (wife of Charles Hoffman Wilson), and Patricia Ann Smith.

Brief Career Summary: Left home at 17. Filled minor positions until Army enlistment, April 19, 1917. Served during war (17 months in A.E.F.) until discharged in 1919 as 1st Lieutenant. Joined R. M. Hollingshead Company, Camden, N. J., as salesman in its San Francisco Branch, advancing to position of Vice-President and General Manager in 1930. Joined Johnson & Johnson, New Brunswick, in June 1933. Elected President on July 19, 1943.

Principal Professional or Business President and Director of Johnson & Johnson; Activities: Director of certain subsidiary companies; member of Board of Managers of the New Brunswick Savings Institution.
Serves on several Industry Advisory Committees, including that of Army-Navy Munitions Board.

President of New Brunswick Chamber of Commerce 1942 - 1944; Chairman of the Middlesex County Planning Board; Director, New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce; Trustee, Middlesex General Hospital, New Brunswick; member, National Advisory Council of Junior Achievement, Inc.; member of Army Advisory Committee of New Brunswick. Active in various other civic activities.

Memberships: Union Club, New Brunswick, N. J. (member of the Board of Governors); Plainfield Country Club, Plainfield, N. J. (member of Board of Trustees); Pine Valley Country Club, Pine Valley, N. J.; Academy of Political Science, New York; Skytop Club, Skytop, Pa.

Religious affiliation: Protestant; political affiliation: non-partisan.

J. Spencer Smith

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS:

24 Park Street, Tenafly

OCCUPATION:

Broker

Born in 1880. Family moved from Illinois to the East around 1883.

Was appointed by Governor Woodrow Wilson in 1911 to a Commission to investigate port conditions. Served as President of the Commission until 1914 when the New Jersey Harbor Commission was created. Served as President of that Commission until 1915 when it was merged with the Board of Commerce and Navigation. Served as President of that Board until its merger with the Department of Conservation in July 1945. Now Chairman of the Navigation Council of the Department of Conservation.

Appointed by Governor Walter E. Edge to the New York-New Jersey Port and Harbor Development Commission. Served as Vice-Chairman until the Port of New York Authority was created as a result of its recommendation. Served as Vice-Chairman of the Port of New York Authority until 1923.

President of the American Shore and Beach Preservation Association; ex-President and Honorary Member of the American Association of Port Authorities.

During World War I, was Chairman of the Board of Appraisal for the War Department, appraising the Bush Terminal and other properties. In World War II, was appointed as expert consultant to the Secretary of War in organizing the Ports of Embarkation and the location of staging areas for the troops going overseas. Now serving as member of Advisory Board on Utilization of Surplus Industrial Facilities. Appointed expert consultant to the Chief of Engineers.

Was elected to the Board of Education of Tenafly, N. J., in 1908. Served continuously until 1942, when I resigned because of my war duties. Was Vice-President and President the greater portion of the time I served on the Board.

Chairman of the Interstate Sanitation Commission of the States of New York, New Jersey and Connecticut. President and Director of the Tenafly Trust Company, and J. R. Smith Sales Co. Inc., New York City.

Frank H. Sommer

COUNTY:

Essex

ADDRESS:

156 Heller Parkway, Newark

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born, Newark, N. J., on September 3, 1872. Admitted to practice of law in New Jersey as attorney in 1893, and as counsellor-at-law in 1897.

Teacher of law, 1893 -- : Netropolis Law School (N. Y.), New York University School of Law, Bryn Nawr. Dean of the New York School of Law, 1916 - 1943; Dean Emeritus, 1943 ---.

Degrees: LL.B., J.D., LL.D., D.C.L. (New York University), LL.D. (Lafayette, New Jersey Law School).

Member, Commission on Revision of General Public Law, 1935-1937; Chairman, Commission on Statutes, 1937 ---.

All other occupations were interludes.

Present office: Deputy Attorney-General assigned to Public Utility Commission of New Jersey.

STANGER, Francis A., Jr.

NAME:

Francis A. Stanger, Jr.

COUNTY:

Cumberland

ADDRESS:

North Main Street, Codarville

OCCUPATION

Lawyer

Born at Glassboro, Gloucester County, September 17, 1887. He was graduated from the University of Pennsylvania Law Department in 1910. Later he was given the honorary degree of Doctor of Laws by Asbury College. He was corporation counsel of the City of Bridgeton, 1911-1914, and Common Pleas Judge of Cumberland County, 1929-1934. He was a member of the State Home Rule Commission, and as such member helped codify the municipal and county laws. He was chairman of the State Crime Commission. He originated the Cumberland County Clinic for dealing with juvenile delinquents. He is lay leader of the New Jersey Methodist Conference. He resides at Cedarville and practices law as a member of the firm of Stanger and Howell, at Bridgeton.

(Mrs.) Ruth C. Streeter

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:

Morris Morristown

OCCUPATION

Housewife

Born, Brookline, Massachusetts, October 2, 1895. Married Thomas Winthrop Streeter, June 23, 1917; four children: Frank Sherwin (Lt. U.S.N.R.), Henry Schofield, (Lt. U.S. N. R.), Thomas Winthrop, Jr. (S/Sgt. A.U.S.), and Lilian Carpenter.

Public Service: 1932-41, Vice-President and later President of Morris County Welfare Board; 1930-33, member, N. J. State Board of Childrens Guardians; 1935-36, member, N. J. State Relief Council; 1935-36, member, N. J. Commission on Inter-State Cooperation; 1942 - , Chairman for Ft. Dix, N. J. of the Citizens Committee for the Army and Navy, Inc.

January 29, 1943 - December 7, 1945, Director, U. S. Marine Corps Women's Reserve. Commissioned Major, U.S.H.C.R., January 1943; promoted to Lt. Colonel, November 1943 and to Colonel, February, 1944.

NAME: Clude W. Struble

COUNTY: Cape May

ADDRESS: 9th & Central Avenue, Ocean City

OCCUPATION: Mayor

Mayor Struble is a native of Swartswood, Sussex County, New Jersey, as were his parents and some of his ancestors. He was born here on March 25, 1895, son of William P. and Malvina Struble. His mother was born in 1865 and died in 1898. William P. Struble, born in Swartswood, October 4, 1861, lived to January 10, 1938. He was a farmer and merclant, important leader in the town, an ardent Republican and a member of the township committee.

Mayor Struble attended the schools of his birthplace, was graduated from the Newton, Sussex County, High School, class of 1914, and received a diploma from the Rider Business College, of Trenton, in 1916, having pursued the general business administration course, with emphasis on accountancy. He was principal of the Penns Grove High School, 1916-18, but gave up an intended career as an educator to enter the Peoples Bank of Penns Grove, where he served in varied capacities from 1918 to 1923.

Mayor Struble came to Cape May County in 1923, to accept the position of assistant cashier with the First National Bank of Ocean City. In 1925 he was made Cashier, and in 1932 was chosen Vice-President. On April 15, 1942, he was licensed as a certified public accountant.

In 1933 he was appointed City Treasurer, and in May, 1943, he became mayor of Ocean City for a term of four years. He is chairman of the Republican City Committee of Ocean City.

Mayor Struble is a Past Master of Ocean City Lodge #171, Free and Accepted Hasons; member of Ocean City Chapter, Royal Arch Masons, of which he is a Past High Priest; Atlantic Commandery, Knights Templar; and Crescent Temple, Ancient Arabic Order Nobles of the Nystic Shrine. He is also a member of Penns Grove Lodge, No. 1358, B.P.O.E., of which he is a Past Exalted Ruler; and a former president of the Kiwanis Club. He attends the Methodist Episcopal Church.

On January 29, 1927, he married Lucile Townsend, born in Ocean City, daughter of Adolph C. and Ella (Stites) Townsend, both natives of Cape May County. There is one son, Clyde W. Jr., born October 25, 1935.

Wesley A. Taylor

COUNTY

Essex

ADDRESS:

475 Norwood St., East Orange

OCCUPATION:

Labor Leader

Born in May's Landing, N. J., July 12, 1906, the son of Clarence A. Taylor and Almeda S. Taylor, nee Henry. Graduated Atlantic City High School in 1924.

Worked as timekeeper on a construction job, clerk in a combination tax office and insurance office, and as title searcher for the Chelsea Title & Guaranty Co., Atlantic City. He moved to East Orange in 1927 and worked as bookbinder in the Hall of Records, Newark, for 18 years.

He was elected Corresponding and Financial Secretary for Bookbinders Local Union #62 in 1942, and Business Representative for Bindery Womens' Local Union #88, and also Bookbinders Local Union #62, in 1946. He has been delegate to the following:

N. J. State A. F. of L.
Union Label Council of H. J.,
Essex Trades Council,
Allied Printing Trades Council,
Graphic Arts Emergency Council, and the
National Convention of the International
Erotherhood of Bookbinders

He is Vice-President, Allied Printing Trades Council; a member of Unity Lodge #96 P. & A. M., and the East Orange Chapter of Royal Arcanum; Secretary of Third Ward Republican Club, East Orange; and Republican county committeeman.

He is married and has two sons, Barry and Michael.

David Van Alstyne, Jr.

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS:

115 Chestnut St., Englewood

OCCUPATION:

Broker

Born January 3, 1897 at Louisville, Kentucky, the son of David and Ella (Peay) Van Alstyne; one brother Ward.

Education and War Record: Went through and graduated from Horace Mann School, New York City, where he was President of the student body. Went to Williams College, class of 1918 (the First World War Class). Played football and track. Took leave of absence from the College and in February, 1917, volunteered in the French Army before the United States entered the First World War and became Section Commander in the Ambulance Corps. When the United States entered the war, was transferred to the United States Army and became a First Lioutenant in the Tanks Corps. Was awarded the Croix de Guerre by the French Government. After honorable discharge went on a trip around the world with his father, who was Vice President of the American Locomotive Co., for over a year. In 1920 returned to Williams College to finish the course and graduate, which he did in June, 1921, receiving a B.A. degree. 1921-2, member of New York State Militia Squadron "A".

Married: Janet Graham of Englewood, New Jersey, October 20, 1923 and has resided in Englewood ever since. They have four children, three daughters and one son.

Ancestry: Jan Martonse Van Alstine from Holland prior to 1646, went to New Amsterdam and subsequently to Kinderhook, N. Y. and subsequent generations traced through to the present. Is a member of Sons of the Revolution; The Holland Society.

Englewood, New Jersey. Attends First Presbyterian Church,

Clubs: Williams; Downtown Association; Downtown Athletic; Bond Club of New York; Englewood (N.J.); Field Club; Knickerbocker Club, Tenafly (N.J.); American Legion Post #78, Englewood (N.J.); John O'Brien Post, Veterans of Foreign Wars, Englewood (N.J.).

Political Activities: 1940-41, Assemblyman from Bergen County; 1942-47, Senator from Bergen County; 1947, Chairman of Joint Legislative Appropriations Committee; 1948, Chairman of Joint Legislative Juvenile Delinquency Committee.

Civic Activities: Member of Executive Committee, Englewood Unemployment (1951); Chairman, Reunion Committee Class of 1918, Williams College; Vice-Chairman, Community Chest Campaign, Englewood; Chairman, Republican Finance Committee (1937); City of Englewood, N. J., Councilman, 1938-41, inclusive; Chairman, Finance Committee, 1939-42; President, City Council, 1942-43, Member of Defense Council.

Business Activities: Investment banker.
1921-22, Securities salesman, Peabody, Houghteling & Co., Inc.;
1923-4, Manager, Baltimore, Md., office, Dillon, Read & Co.;
1925-30 Vice-President in charge of sales, Peabody, Smith & Co., Inc. (successor to Peabody, Houghteling & Co., Inc.);
1930-32, Vice-President in charge of sales, G. L. Ohrstrom & Co., Inc. In July, 1932, established own firm, Van Alstyne, Noel & Co., Inc.; was President and Treasurer until firm changed to partnership, March 1, 1937, and is now senior partner. In February, 1943, partnership joined New York Stock Exchange and New York Curb Exchange.

Directorates: Chairman of the Board, St.
Lawrence Corp., Ltd., Montreal, Canada, and Hercules Steel
Products Corp., Galion, Ohio; Chairman of Executive
Committee, Sonotone Corp., Elmsford, N.Y.; Director,
New Idria Quicksilver Mining Co., San Francisco, Cal.,
American Phonolic Corp., Chicago, Ill., Buffalo Bolt Co.,
North Tonawanda, N. Y., United Piece Dye Works, Lodi, N.J.,
Emerson Electric Mfg. Co., St. Louis, No., Allen B. DuMont
Laboratories, Inc., Passaic, N. J., Struthers Wells Corp.,
Titusville, Pa., and Continental Motors Corp., Detroit, Mich.

George H. Walton

COUNTY:

Camden

ADDRESS:

235 Washington Avenue, Haddonfield

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

George H. Walton was born June 8, 1904, in Haddonfield, the son of Joseph and Addie Austin Walton. He was educated in the public schools, graduating from the Haddonfield High School in 1923; attended the University of Pennsylvania, graduating in 1927, and from the law school of that institution in 1930. From 1927 until 1932 he was an instructor in political science in the University. He was admitted to the New Jersey Bar in 1931, and is now a member of the Camden law firm of Drenk and Walton.

In 1938 he was appointed to the Camden County Board of Election, and was reappointed in 1940. In 1939 he was elected Chairman of the Republican County Committee, and served in that capacity for four years, resigning upon his election to the Republican State Committee. He was an alternate District Delegate to the Republican National Convention of 1940. In 1947 he was appointed by Governor Driscoll as Associate Counsel to the Governor.

On October 1, 1942, he went on active duty as a Captain in the Army of the United States, and saw service with the 36th Infantry Division, Headquarters II Corps, and Headquarters Seventh Army in North Africa, Sicily, Italy, France and Germany. He made three D-Day invasions, Sicily, Salerno and Southern France. He holds the Bronze Star Medal with Oak Leaf Cluster, the European Service Ribbon with six battle stars and Bronze Arrowhead. In July, 1944, he was promoted to Major, and in March, 1945, to Lieutenant-Colonel. He went on inactive duty in November, 1945.

In 1932 he was married to Helen S. Scammell, daughter of Dr. Frank G. Scammell of Trenton. They have two sons, Frank G. S. and Joseph A. Walton.

NAME: Elmer H. Wene COUNTY: Cumberland

ADDRESS: E. Landis Ave., Vineland

OCCUPATION: Senator - Poultryman

Elmer H. Wene, of Vineland, owns and operates the Wene Chick Farms Hatchery, the Wene Poultry Laboratories, also a general farm in Hunterdon County, and is the principal stockholder and president of two important radio stations in New Jersey.

He was born in Hunterdon County, N. J., the son the late Emanuel S. and Mary J. Wene, nee Killy. To was reared on a farm in Hunterdon County and educated in the public schools of that county. He later completed a special course in agriculture at Rutgers University, New Brunswick.

He has lectured on the poultry industry in many of the leading agricultural colleges in the United States and served on the New Jorsey State Board of Agriculture for nine years, five of which he was president. He is past president of the International Baby Chick Association, New Jersey Baby Chick Association, Cumberland County Board of Agriculture, Vineland-Landis Township Chamber of Commerce and Vineland Rotary Club.

He is at present on the Board of Directors of both the Newcomb Hospital, Vineland, and the Vineland Savings and Loan Association. He is a member of the Grange, Masons, Elks, Eagles, Moose, Red Men and is a member of the Methodist Church.

He has been active in every Domocratic campaign since he became a voter and was elected to the 75th Congress in 1936. In 1939 he was elected a member of the Board of Chosen Freeholders of Cumberland County, and was re-elected to the 77th Congress in 1940 and to the 78th Congress in 1942, and was appointed Executive Advisor to the U. S. Secretary of Agriculture in 1946. he was elected to the N. J. State Senate in 1946.

Walter G. Winnie

COUNTY:

Bergen

ADDRESS:

381 West Anderson Street, Hackensack

OCCUPATION:

Attorney

Born in Brooklyn, New York, in 1889. Is a graduate of Hackensack High School; entered Rutgers College in 1906 and received the degree of Bachelor of Letters in 1910, and that of Bachelor of Laws cum laude in 1912 at New York Law School. He was admitted to the New Jersey State Bar the same year and began his practice in Hackensack.

He was elected to the New Jersey Assembly for Bergen County in 1916 and re-elected for three succeeding terms. In 1922 he was appointed by President Harding as United States District Attorney for New Jersey, was reappointed by President Coolidge, and served until 1928 when he resigned to return to private practice with the firm of Winne and Banta in Hackensack.

He was made Counsel of Bergen County in 1934 and in 1944 was appointed Bergen County Prosecutor by Governor Edge. On June 8th, 1947, he was elected as President of the New Jersey State Bar Association.

Married Althea M. Sharp, 1916; two children, Eleanor and Barbara.

Clubs: Southside Sportsmen's Club of Oakdale, Long Island; Beaverkill Trout Club, Beaverkill, N. Y.; P.B.O.E. and Oritani Field Club.

COUNTY:

David Young, 3rd

COUNTY:
ADDRESS:

Morris Towaco

OCCUPATION:

Senator-Lawyer

Mr. Moung was born in San Francisco, Cal., on March 1, 1905. He attended Montclair High School and graduated in 1926 from Lafayette College as Civil Engineer. He subsequently attended New Jersey Law School, being admitted to the New Jersey Bar in 1931 and as a counsellorat-law in 1935. He is also a Supreme Court Commissioner and a Special Master in Chancery of New Jersey.

Mr. Young maintains his office at 714 Main Street, Boonton, New Jersey, and is a member of a number of fraternal, civic and political organizations. He is a member of the New Jersey State Bar and American Bar Associations, and vice-president of the Morris County Bar Association.

Mr. Young is married and has three children. He was elected to the Assembly for the first time at the November, 1940, election, and re-elected in 1941, 1942, 1943, 1944, and 1945. In 1946 Mr. Young was elected to the New Jersey State Senate from Morris County.